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IMPORTANT INFORMATION

THIS REGISTRATION DOCUMENT CONTAINS INFORMATION PERTAINING TO IZI FINANCE PLC. (C 101228), AS THE
ISSUER OF THE BONDS, AND THE BUSINESS OF THE GROUP WHICH IT FORMS PART, IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE
REQUIREMENTS OF THE CAPITAL MARKETS RULES ISSUED BY THE MALTA FINANCIAL SERVICES AUTHORITY, THE ACT
AND THE PROSPECTUS REGULATION.

NO BROKER, DEALER, SALESMAN OR OTHER PERSON HAS BEEN AUTHORISED BY THE ISSUER, OR ITS DIRECTORS,
OR THE ISSUER’S ADVISERS, TO ISSUE ANY ADVERTISEMENT, OR TO GIVE ANY INFORMATION, OR TO MAKE ANY
REPRESENTATIONS IN CONNECTION WITH THE SALE OF SECURITIES OF THE ISSUER OTHER THAN THOSE CONTAINED
IN THIS REGISTRATION DOCUMENT AND IN THE DOCUMENTS REFERRED TO HEREIN, AND IF GIVEN OR MADE, SUCH
INFORMATION OR REPRESENTATIONS MUST NOT BE RELIED UPON AS HAVING BEEN AUTHORISED BY THE ISSUER, OR
ITS DIRECTORS, OR THE ISSUER'S ADVISERS.

THE PROSPECTUS DOES NOT CONSTITUTE, AND MAY NOT BE USED FOR PURPOSES OF, AN OFFER OR INVITATION
TO SUBSCRIBE FOR SECURITIES ISSUED BY THE ISSUER: (I) BY ANY PERSON IN ANY JURISDICTION IN WHICH SUCH
OFFER OR INVITATION IS NOT AUTHORISED OR IN WHICH THE PERSON MAKING SUCH OFFER OR INVITATION IS NOT
QUALIFIED TO DO SO; OR (Il) TO ANY PERSON TO WHOM IT IS UNLAWFUL TO MAKE SUCH OFFER OR INVITATION. THE
DISTRIBUTION OF THE PROSPECTUS IN CERTAIN JURISDICTIONS MAY BE RESTRICTED AND, ACCORDINGLY, PERSONS
INTO WHOSE POSSESSION [T IS RECEIVED ARE REQUIRED TO INFORM THEMSELVES ABOUT, AND TO OBSERVE, SUCH
RESTRICTIONS.

THE PROSPECTUS AND THE OFFERING, SALE OR DELIVERY OF ANY SECURITIES MAY NOT BE TAKEN AS AN IMPLICATION:
(I) THAT THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THE PROSPECTUS IS ACCURATE AND COMPLETE SUBSEQUENT TO ITS
DATE OF ISSUE; OR (ll) THAT THERE HAS BEEN NO MATERIAL ADVERSE CHANGE IN THE FINANCIAL POSITION OR
PERFORMANCE OF THE ISSUER OR THE GROUP SINCE SUCH DATE; OR (IIl) THAT ANY OTHER INFORMATION SUPPLIED
IN CONNECTION WITH THE PROSPECTUS IS ACCURATE AT ANY TIME SUBSEQUENT TO THE DATE ON WHICH IT IS
SUPPLIED OR, IF DIFFERENT, THE DATE INDICATED IN THE DOCUMENT CONTAINING THE SAME.

THIS REGISTRATION DOCUMENT IS VALID FOR A PERIOD OF 12 MONTHS FROM THE DATE HEREOF. THE ISSUER IS
NOT OBLIGED TO PUBLISH A SUPPLEMENT TO THE REGISTRATION DOCUMENT IN THE EVENT OF SIGNIFICANT
NEW FACTORS, MATERIAL MISTAKES OR MATERIAL INACCURACIES WHICH ARISE FOLLOWING THE LAPSE OF THE
PERIOD OF VALIDITY OF THIS REGISTRATION DOCUMENT. FURTHERMORE, THE ISSUER SHALL NOT BE OBLIGED TO
SUPPLEMENT THIS REGISTRATION DOCUMENT SHOULD ANY AFORESAID SIGNFICANT NEW FACTORS, MATERIAL
MISTAKES OR MATERIAL INACCURACIES ARISE OR ARE NOTED FOLLOWING THE LATER OF THE CLOSING OF THE
OFFER PERIOD OR THE TIE WHEN TRADING ON THE OFFICIAL LIST BEGINS.

IT1S THE RESPONSIBILITY OF ANY PERSON IN POSSESSION OF THIS DOCUMENT AND ANY PERSON WISHING TO APPLY
FOR ANY SECURITIES ISSUED BY THE ISSUER TO INFORM THEMSELVES OF, AND TO OBSERVE AND COMPLY WITH,
ALL APPLICABLE LAWS AND REGULATIONS OF ANY RELEVANT JURISDICTION. PROSPECTIVE INVESTORS FOR ANY
SECURITIES THAT MAY BE ISSUED BY THE ISSUER SHOULD INFORM THEMSELVES AS TO THE LEGAL REQUIREMENTS OF
APPLYING FOR ANY SUCH SECURITIES AND ANY APPLICABLE EXCHANGE CONTROL REQUIREMENTS AND TAXES IN
THE COUNTRIES OF THEIR NATIONALITY, RESIDENCE OR DOMICILE.

SAVE FOR THE OFFERING IN THE REPUBLIC OF MALTA, NO ACTION HAS BEEN, OR WILL BE, TAKEN BY THE ISSUER THAT
WOULD PERMIT A PUBLIC OFFERING OF THE SECURITIES OF THE ISSUER DESCRIBED IN THE SECURITIES NOTE, OR
THE DISTRIBUTION OF THE PROSPECTUS (OR ANY PART THEREOF), OR ANY OFFERING MATERIAL, IN ANY COUNTRY OR
JURISDICTION WHERE ACTION FOR THAT PURPOSE IS REQUIRED. ACCORDINGLY, NO SECURITIES OF THE ISSUER MAY
BE OFFERED OR SOLD, DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY, AND NEITHER THE PROSPECTUS, NOR ANY ADVERTISMENT OR OTHER
OFFERING MATERIAL MAY BE DISTRIBUTED OR PUBLISHED IN ANY JURISDICTION, EXCEPT UNDER CIRCUMSTANCES
THAT WILL RESULT IN COMPLIANCE WITH ANY APPLICABLE LAWS AND REGULATIONS. PERSONS INTO WHOSE
POSSESSION THIS PROSPECTUS, OR ANY OTHER OFFERING MATERIAL, MAY COME MUST INFORM THEMSELVES
ABOUT, AND OBSERVE, ANY SUCH RESTRICTIONS ON THE DISTRIBUTION OF THIS PROSPECTUS AND THE OFFERING
AND SALE OF SECURITIES.

A COPY OF THIS REGISTRATION DOCUMENT HAS BEEN SUBMITTED TO THE MALTA FINANCIAL SERVICES AUTHORITY IN
SATISFACTION OF THE CAPITAL MARKETS RULES, THE MALTA STOCK EXCHANGE IN SATISFACTION OF THE MALTA STOCK
EXCHANGE BYE-LAWS AND THE REGISTRAR OF COMPANIES AT THE MALTA BUSINESS REGISTRY IN ACCORDANCE
WITH THE ACT.



STATEMENTS MADE IN THIS REGISTRATION DOCUMENT ARE, EXCEPT WHERE OTHERWISE STATED, BASED ON THE
LAW AND PRACTICE CURRENTLY IN FORCE IN MALTA AND ARE SUBJECT TO CHANGES THEREIN.

ALL THE ADVISERS TO THE ISSUER NAMED IN THIS REGISTRATION DOCUMENT UNDER THE HEADING ‘ADVISERS”
IN SECTION 3.3. OF THIS REGISTRATION DOCUMENT HAVE ACTED AND ARE ACTING EXCLUSIVELY FOR THE ISSUER
IN RELATION TO THE PROSPECTUS AND HAVE NO CONTRACTUAL, FIDUCIARY OR OTHER OBLIGATION TOWARDS
ANY OTHER PERSON AND WILL ACCORDINGLY NOT BE RESPONSIBLE TO ANY INVESTOR OR ANY OTHER PERSON
WHOMSOEVER IN RELATION TO THE TRANSACTIONS PROPOSED IN THE PROSPECTUS.

THE CONTENTS OF THE ISSUER'S WEBSITE OR ANY WEBSITE DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY LINKED TO THE ISSUER'S
WEBSITE DO NOT FORM PART OF THE PROSPECTUS UNLESS SUCH CONTENTS ARE INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE
INTO THE PROSPECTUS. ACCORDINGLY, NO RELIANCE OUGHT TO BE MADE BY ANY INVESTOR ON ANY INFORMATION
OR OTHER DATA CONTAINED IN SUCH WEBSITES AS THE BASIS FOR A DECISION TO INVEST IN THE SECURITIES.

THE VALUE OF INVESTMENTS CAN GO UP OR DOWN AND PAST PERFORMANCE IS NOT NECESSARILY INDICATIVE
OF FUTURE PERFORMANCE. PROSPECTIVE INVESTORS SHOULD CAREFULLY CONSIDER ALL THE INFORMATION
CONTAINED IN THE PROSPECTUS AS A WHOLE AND SHOULD CONSULT THEIR OWN FINANCIAL AND OTHER
PROFESSIONAL ADVISERS BEFORE DECIDING TO MAKE AN INVESTMENT IN THE SECURITIES OF THE ISSUER.
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<+ 1. DEFINITIONS

In this Registration Document, the following capitalised words and expressions shall bear the following meanings,
except where the context otherwise requires:

Act
B2B

B2B Licence

B2C

B2C Licence

B2C Operator

Bond Issue

Bonds

Capital Markets Rules

Controlled Gaming Premises

Critical Gaming Supply

Directors or Board of
Directors

Dragonara Casino

Dragonara Casino
Concession

Dragonara Gaming Limited

the Companies Act (Cap. 386 of the laws of Malta);
business-to-business;

a business-to-business critical gaming supply licence to provide a Critical
Gaming Supply, issued by the MGA in terms of the Gaming Authorisations
Regulations;

business-to-consumer:;

a business-to-consumer gaming licence, to offer or carry out a Gaming
Service, issued by the MGA in terms of the Gaming Authorisations Regulations;

a gaming operator offering or carrying out one or more Gaming Services
pursuant to one or more B2C Licences;

the issue of the Bonds being made pursuant to and in accordance with the
terms and conditions of the Securities Note;

up to €30 million unsecured bonds of a nominal value of €100 per bond
payable in full upon subscription and redeemable at their nominal value on
the Redemption Date and bearing interest at the rate of 5.5% per annum, as
described in further detail in the Securities Note;

the capital markets rules issued by the MFSA, as may be amended from time
to time;

any premises intended to make available for use, to host or operate one
or more gaming devices, but do not include premises in which gaming is
carried out in virtue of a concession by the Government of Malta or premises
in which the only gaming which is carried out consists in tombola games;

means a material supply (as such termis defined underthe Gaming Definitions
Regulations) which is: (a) indispensable in determining the outcome of game
or games forming part of the Gaming Service; and, or (b) an indispensable
component in the processing and, or management of essential regulatory
data (as such term is defined under the Gaming Definitions Regulations);

the directors of the Issuer whose names are set out in section 3.1 of this
Registration Document under the heading “Directors of the Issuer”,

the building known as the “Dragonara Casino” and its adjoining grounds
situated in Paceville in the limits of St. Julian’s, which have a total area of 16,130
square metres;

the concession granted by the Government of Malta in favour of Dragonara
Gaming Limited to operate a casino in and from the Dragonara Casino for a
ten (10)-year period commencing on 1 August 2021 and terminating on 28 July
2031, as subsequently extended until 28 July 2033;

Dragonara Gaming Limited, a private limited liability company registered
under the laws of Malta with company registration number C 49848 and
having its registered address at Dragonara Casino Complex, Dragonara
Road, St. Julian’s STJ 3143, Malta;



Dragonara Intellectual
Property Rights

Electronic Gaming Machine

or EGM

Euroor €
Gaming Act

Gaming Authorisations
Regulations

Gaming Definitions
Regulations

Gaming Service
Government of Malta

Gross Gaming Revenue or
GGR

Group

Historical Horse Racing
(HHR)

Issuer

1ZI Entertainment GmbH

1ZI Group Limited

1ZI Group Services Limited

1ZI Interactive Limited

any and all trademarks, logos, service marks, trade names, business names,
domains and domain names, trade secrets, know-how and any and all
other intellectual property rights of whatever kind or nature relating to the
Dragonara Casino (whether registered or unregistered, owned by or licensed
to entities forming part of the I1ZI Group) and all goodwill relating thereto;

an electrical, electronic or mechanical device that is used or is by its nature
intended for use as part of a Gaming Service in connection therewith in order
to allow a player to place a wager, and, or to obtain the outcome of a game in
a gaming premises (including a Controlled Gaming Premises), the outcome
of which is determined by a random number generator that is physically
installed inside the device and constitutes an integral part thereof;

the lawful currency of the Republic of Malta;
the Gaming Act (Cap. 583 of the laws of Malta);

the Gaming Authorisations Regulations, Subsidiary Legislation 583.05 of the
laws of Malta;

the Gaming Definitions Regulations, Subsidiary Legislation 583.04 of the laws
of Malta;

making a game available for participation by players, whether directly or
indirectly, and whether alone or with others, as an economic activity;

the Government of the Republic of Malta;

an amount equal to the totality of real money wagers (including real money
deposits or winnings held in the player’s account) plus the totality of bonus
wagers and other financial incentives less the sum of total withdrawal
winnings (excluding bonus winnings and other winnings that are not instantly
redeemable) and bonus wagers and other financial incentives;

the Issuer and the Subsidiaries;

is a form of pari-mutuel lottery that allows players to place bets on the
outcomes of previously run horse races using electronic terminals;

IZI Finance p.l.c., a public limited liability company registered under the laws of
Malta, with company registration number C 101228 and having its registered
office at The Quad Central, Q3 Level 1, Trig L-Esportaturi, Zone 1, Central
Business District, Birkirkara CBD 1040, Mallta;

IZI Entertainment GmbH, a limited liability company registered under the
laws of Austria, with company registration number FN 656458f and having its
registered office at Schleifmuhlgasse 4 / Top 11,1040 Wien - Austria;

IZI Group Limited, a private limited liability company registered under the
laws of Malta, with company registration number C 114519 and having its
registered office at The Quad Central, Q3 Level 11, Triq |-Esportaturi, Zone 1,
Central Business District, Birkirkara CBD 1040, Malta;

IZI Group Services Limited, a private limited liability company registered under
the laws of Malta, with company registration number C 108516 and having its
registered office at The Quad Central, Q3 Level 11, Triq |-Esportaturi, Zone 1,
Central Business District, Birkirkara CBD 1040, Malta;

IZI Interactive Limited, a private limited liability company registered under
the laws of Mallta, with company registration number C 75678 and having its
registered office at The Quad Central, Q3 Level 11, Trig |-Esportaturi, Zone 1,
Central Business District, Birkirkara CBD 1040, Malta:



1ZI International SARL

1ZI Services Limited

IZIBET GmbH

I1ZIBET Intellectual Property
Rights

JGS Corporate Holdings
Limited or Parent

Malta Financial Services
Authority or MFSA

Malta Stock Exchange or
MSE

Memorandum and Articles
of Association

MGA
National Lottery

National Lottery Concession

National Lottery Games

National Lottery Games Suite

National Lottery Intellectual
Property Rights

IZI International SARL, a limited liability company registered under the laws
of Luxembourg, with company registration number B293663 and having its
registered office at 7, Rue de Bitbourg, L-1273 Luxembourg, Grand-Duche de
Luxembourg;

IZI Services Limited, a private limited liability company registered under the
laws of Malta, with company registration number C 108515 and having its
registered office at The Quad Central, Q3 Level 11, Trig |-Esportaturi, Zone 1,
Central Business District, Birkirkara CBD 1040, Malta;

IZIBET GmbH, a limited liability company registered under the laws of Austria,
with company registration number FN 667686t and having its registered
office at Schleifmuhlgasse 4 / Top 11,1040, Wien - Austria;

any and all trademarks, logos, service marks, trade names, business hames,
domains and domain names, trade secrets, know-how and any and all other
intellectual property rights of whatever kind or nature relating to the IZIBET
brand (whether registered or unregistered, owned by or licensed to entities
forming part of the Group) and all goodwill relating thereto;

JGS Corporate Holdings Limited (formerly, ‘IZI Group Limited’), a private
limited liability company registered under the laws of Malta, with company
registration number C 34215 and having its registered office at The Quad
Central, Q3 Level 11, Trig L-Esportaturi, Zone 1, Central Business District,
Birkirkara CBD 1040, Malta;

the Malta Financial Services Authority, established in terms of the Malta
Financial Services Authority Act (Cap. 330 of the laws of Malta);

Malta Stock Exchange p.l.c., as originally constituted in terms of the Financial
Markets Act (Cap. 345 of the laws of Malta) with company registration number
C 42525 and having its registered office at Garrison Chapel, Castille Place,
Valletta VLT 1063, Mallta;

the memorandum and articles of association of the Issuer in force at the time
of publication of the Prospectus in the form as registered with the Registrar
of Companies at the Malta Business Registry. The terms “Memorandum’,
“Articles” and “Articles of Association” shall be construed accordingly;

the Malta Gaming Authority, established in terms of the Gaming Act;
the national lottery of Malta;

the concession granted by the Government of Malta under article 11(3)(b) of
the Gaming Act in favour of National Lottery p.l.c.,for a 10-year period for: (i) the
exclusive rights to operate the National Lottery in Malta; and (ii) the exclusive
licence for the use of the National Lottery Intellectual Property Rights;

Super 5 and Lotto, in the form envisaged in the National Lottery Licence, as
well as any variation thereof;

all National Lottery Games and all Other Games as set out in the National
Lottery Licence;

the intellectual property rights in Super 5 and Lotto as well as any add-on
games linked tothe said games,including the goodwillinherenttherein,as well
as the related trademarks, service marks, logos, signs, game names, design
and, or the get-up of tickets, designs and copyright which are currently used
or exploited or are capable of being used or exploited by National Lottery p.l.c.
in connection with the National Lottery Concession;



National Lottery Licence

National Lottery p.l.c.

Other Games

Pinnacle IP Limited

Prospectus

Prospectus Regulation

Registrar & Co-Manager

Registration Document

Securities Note

Sponsor & Co-Manager

Subsidiaries

Summary

the national lottery licence granted by the MGA under Article 4 of the Gaming
Authorisations Regulations, bearing licence number MGA/B2C/003/2022,
which authorises National Lottery p.l.c. to operate the National Lottery Games
Suite;

National Lottery p.l.c., a public limited liability company registered under the
laws of Malta with company registration number C 100229 and having its
registered office at The Quad Central, Q3 Level 11, Trig L-Esportaturi, Zone 1,
Central Business District, Birkirkara CBD 1040, Malta;

any other game included in the National Lottery Licence which is not a
National Lottery Game which is operated on a non-exclusive basis, and which
is subject to the MGA's prior approval, to be granted in its sole and absolute
discretion;

Pinnacle IP Limited, a private limited liability company registered under the
laws of Malta with company registration number C 90608 and having its
registered office at The Quad Central, Q3 Level 11, Triq |-Esportaturi, Zone 1,
Central Business District, Birkirkara CBD 1040, Malta;

collectively, this Registration Document, the Securities Note and the Summary;

Regulation (EU) No. 2017/1129 of the European Parliament and of the Council of
14 June 2017 on the prospectus to be published when securities are offered
to the public or admitted to trading on a regulated market, as amended,
and in accordance with the provisions of Commission Delegated Regulation
No. 2019/979 and Commission Delegated Regulation No. 2019/980 issued
thereunder;

Bank of Valletta p.l.c., a public limited liability company registered under
the laws of Malta with company registration number C 2833 and having
its registered address at 58, Zachary Street, Valletta VLT 1130, Malta. Bank of
Valletta p.l.c. is regulated by the MFSA and is licensed to carry out the business
of banking and investment services in terms of the Banking Act (Chapter 371
of the laws of Malta) and the Investment Services Act (Chapter 370 of the laws
of Malta), and reference to “Registrar” and “Co-Manager” shall be construed
accordingly, as the context requires;

this document in its entirety;

the securities note issued by the Issuer dated 26 February 2026, forming part
of the Prospectus;

Rizzo, Farrugia & Co (Stockbrokers) Ltd, a private limited liability company
registered under the laws of Malta, with company registration number C
13102, having its registered office at Airways House, Fourth Floor, High Street,
Sliema SLM 1551, Malta, licensed by the MFSA and a member of the MSE, and
reference to the “Sponsor” or “Co-Manager”, shall be construed accordingly,
as the context requires;

an entity over which the Issuer has control. In terms of the International
Financial Reporting Standards adopted by the European Union, a group
controls an entity when the group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power to direct the activities of the entity. The term
“Subsidiary” shall be construed accordingly. The term “Subsidiaries” shall
collectively refer to the said entities;

the summary issued by the Issuer dated 26 February 2026, forming part of
the Prospectus;



Triple Crown SARL Triple Crown SARL, a limited liability company registered under the laws of
Luxembourg with company registration number B294998 and having its
registered office at 7, Rue de Bitbourg L - 1273 Luxembourg, Grand Duchy of
Luxembourg;

Type 1 Gaming Services games of chance played against the house, the outcome of which is
determined by a random generator, and shall include casino type games,
including roulette, blackjack, baccarat, poker played against the house,
lotteries, secondary lotteries and virtual sports games;

Type 2 Gaming Services games of chance played against the house, the outcome of which is not
generated randomly, butis determined bythe result ofan event orcompetition
extraneous to a game of chance, and whereby the operator manages his or
her own risk by managing the odds offered to the player;

Type 3 Gaming Services games of chance not played against the house and wherein the operator is
not exposed to gaming risk, but generates revenue by taking a commission or
other charge based on the stakes or the prize, and shall include player versus
player games such as poker, bingo, betting exchange, and other commission-
based games;

Type 4 Gaming Services controlled skill games as per regulation 8 of the Gaming Authorisations
Regulations; and

World Lottery Association the World Lottery Association, an international, member-based organisation
of state-authorised lotteries, state-licensed sports betting operators and
suppliers to global regulated lottery and sports betting ecosystem.

Unless it appears otherwise from the context:

words importing the singular shall include the plural and vice versa;

words importing the masculine gender shall include the feminine gender and vice versa;

the word “may” shall be construed as permissive and the word “shall” shall be construed as imperative;

all references in this Registration Document to “Malta” shall be construed as defined in Article 124 (1) of the

Constitution of Malta

e. any phrase introduced by the terms “including”, “include’, “in particular” or any similar expressionism shall
be illustrative only and does not limit the sense of the words preceding those terms; and

f. any reference to a law, legislative act, and, or other legislation shall mean that particular law, legislative act

and, or legislation as in force at the date of this Registration Document.

Qo0op



<+ 2.RISKFACTORS

2.1. GENERAL

PROSPECTIVE INVESTORS SHOULD CAREFULLY CONSIDER, WITH THEIR OWN FINANCIAL AND OTHER PROFESSIONAL
ADVISERS, THE FOLLOWING RISK FACTORS AND OTHER INVESTMENT CONSIDERATIONS, AS WELL AS ALL THE OTHER
INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THE PROSPECTUS, BEFORE MAKING ANY INVESTMENT DECISION WITH RESPECT TO
THE ISSUER. SOME OF THESE RISKS ARE SUBJECT TO CONTINGENCIES WHICH MAY, OR MAY NOT, OCCUR AND
THE ISSUER AND ITS DIRECTORS ARE NOT IN A POSITION TO EXPRESS A VIEW ON THE LIKELIHOOD OF ANY SUCH
CONTINGENCIES OCCURRING.

THE RISK FACTORS BELOW HAVE BEEN CATEGORISED UNDER FOUR MAIN CATEGORIES, ACCORDING TO WHETHER
THE RISK FACTORS RELATE TO: () THE ISSUER PER SE; (Il) ECONOMIC AND FINANCIAL RISKS; (lll) REGULATORY AND
LEGAL RISKS; (IV) BUSINESS AND OPERATIONAL RISKS; AND (V) SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE RISKS.

THE RISK FACTOR FIRST APPEARING UNDER EACH SUB-CATEGORY CONSTITUTES THAT RISK FACTOR WHICH THE
DIRECTORS HAVE ASSESSED TO BE THE MOST MATERIAL RISK FACTOR UNDER SUCH SUB-CATEGORY AS AT THE DATE
OF THIS REGISTRATION DOCUMENT. SUBSEQUENT RISK FACTORS IN THE SAME SUB-CATEGORY ARE NOT RANKED
IN ORDER OF MATERIALITY OR PROBABILITY OF OCCURRENCE. IN MAKING THEIR ASSESSMENT OF MATERIALITY,
THE DIRECTORS HAVE EVALUATED THE COMBINATION OF: (I) THE PROBABILITY THAT THE RISK FACTOR OCCURS;
AND (II) THE EXPECTED MAGNITUDE OF THE ADVERSE EFFECT ON THE FINANCIAL CONDITION AND PERFORMANCE,
OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE, BUSINESS AND, OR TRADING PROSPECTS OF THE ISSUER, AND, OR THE GROUP, IF THE
RISK FACTOR WERE TO MATERIALISE. WHERE A RISK FACTOR MAY BE CATEGORISED IN MORE THAN ONE CATEGORY,
SUCH RISK FACTOR ONLY APPEARS ONCE IN THE MOST RELEVANT CATEGORY OR SUB-CATEGORY FOR SUCH RISK
FACTOR.

IF ANY OF THE RISKS DESCRIBED BELOW WERE TO MATERIALISE, THEY COULD HAVE A SERIOUS ADVERSE EFFECT ON
THE ISSUER’S AND, OR THE GROUP’S FINANCIAL RESULTS, FINANCIAL CONDITION, OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE,
BUSINESS AND, OR TRADING PROSPECTS, AS WELL AS THE ABILITY OF THE ISSUER TO FULFIL ITS OBLIGATIONS UNDER
THE SECURITIES ISSUED BY IT FROM TIME TO TIME, INCLUDING ITS OBLIGATIONS UNDER THE BONDS. THE RISKS AND
UNCERTAINTIES DISCUSSED BELOW ARE THOSE IDENTIFIED AS SUCH BY THE DIRECTORS AS AT THE DATE OF THIS
REGISTRATION DOCUMENT, HOWEVER, THESE RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES MAY NOT BE THE ONLY ONES THAT THE
ISSUER AND, OR GROUP FACES OR COULD FACE. ADDITIONAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES, INCLUDING THOSE WHICH
THE ISSUER'’S DIRECTORS ARE NOT CURRENTLY AWARE OF, OR THAT THE DIRECTORS CURRENTLY DEEM IMMATERIAL,
INDIVIDUALLY OR CUMULATIVELY, MAY WELL RESULT IN A MATERIAL ADVERSE IMPACT ON THE ISSUER’S AND, OR
GROUP’S FINANCIAL RESULTS, FINANCIAL CONDITION, OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE, BUSINESS AND, OR TRADING
PROSPECTS.

THE PROSPECTUS, THE DOCUMENTATION INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE HEREIN, AND, OR ANY OTHER INFORMATION
SUPPLIED IN CONNECTION WITH SECURITIES ISSUED BY THE ISSUER: (I) IS NOT INTENDED TO PROVIDE THE BASIS
FOR ANY CREDIT OR OTHER EVALUATION; (II) IS NOT AND SHOULD NOT BE CONSIDERED AS A RECOMMENDATION
BY THE ISSUER, THE DIRECTORS, ANY OF THE ADVISERS LISTED IN SECTION 3.3. BELOW, THE SPONSOR, OR ANY OF
THE AUTHORISED FINANCIAL INTERMEDIARIES, THAT ANY RECIPIENT OF THE PROSPECTUS, THE DOCUMENTATION
INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE HEREIN, OR ANY OTHER INFORMATION SUPPLIED IN CONNECTION THEREWITH,
SHOULD PURCHASE ANY SECURITIES ISSUED BY THE ISSUER, INCLUDING THE BONDS, AND, THEREFORE, PROSPECTIVE
INVESTORS SHOULD MAKE THEIR OWN EVALUATION OF ALL RISK FACTORS, AND SHOULD CONSIDER ALL OTHER
SECTIONS IN THE PROSPECTUS; AND (Ill) CONTAIN STATEMENTS THAT ARE, OR MAY BE DEEMED TO BE, “FORWARD-
LOOKING STATEMENTS’.

2.2. FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Forward-looking statements can be identified by the use of forward-looking terminology, including the terms
“believes”, “estimates”, “forecasts’, “projects”, “anticipates”, “expects”, “envisages”, “intends”, “may”, “will”, or “should”
or,in each case, their negative or other variations or comparable terminology. These forward-looking statements
relate to matters that are not historical facts. They appear in a number of places throughout the Prospectus, and
in documents incorporated therein by reference, and include statements regarding the intentions, beliefs or

current expectations of the Issuer and, or the Directors concerning, amongst other things, the Issuer’s strategy



and business plans, financial condition and performance, results of operations, liquidity, prospects, investments,
and the markets in which it operates.

By their nature, forward-looking statements involve risks and uncertainties because they relate to events
and depend on circumstances that may, or may not occur, in the future. Forward-looking statements are not
guarantees of future performance and should therefore not be construed as such.The Issuer’s and, orthe Group’s
actual operational results, financial condition and performance, and trading prospects may differ materially
from the impression created by the forward-looking statements contained in the Prospectus. In addition, even
if the operational results, financial condition and performance, and trading prospects of the Issuer and, or of
the Group are consistent with the forward-looking statements contained in the Prospectus, those results or
developments may not be indicative of results or developments in subsequent periods. Important factors that
may cause these differences include, but are not limited to, those factors identified under this section and
elsewhere in the Prospectus.

All forward-looking statements contained in the Prospectus are made only as at the date hereof. Subject to
applicable legal and regulatory obligations, the Issuer and its Directors expressly disclaim any obligations to
update or revise any forward-looking statement contained herein to reflect any change in expectations with
regard thereto or any change in events, conditions or circumstances on which any such statement is based.

2.3. RISKS RELATING TO THE ISSUER
2.3.1. Risks associated with the dependency of the Issuer on the performance of its Subsidiaries

As a finance and holding company of the Group, the Issuer does not carry out any trading activities of its own.
The majority of the Issuer’s assets consist of loans granted to its Subsidiaries and shares held in its Subsidiaries,
and the only revenue it generates emanates from the receipt of principal and income payments on funds it
advances to its Subsidiaries and dividends received from its Subsidiaries, from time to time. The Issuer is thus
economically dependent on the operational results, the financial position and the financial performance of its
Subsidiaries. Consequently, the financial and operational results of the Subsidiaries have a direct effect on the
Issuer’s financial position.

The ability of the Subsidiaries to make payments of principal and interest to the Issuer as well as their ability to
distribute dividends is dependent on the cash flows and earnings of the relevant Subsidiary.

24. ECONOMIC AND FINANCIAL RISKS
2.41. Risks relating to the global economy and financial markets

The operations of the Group are affected by conditions in the global economy and financial markets. In recent
years, persistently high inflation, particularly in the EU and other major economies, has been driven by a
combination of factors, including ongoing geopolitical conflicts and instability, elevated energy and commodity
prices, and disruptions to global supply chains. Changes in overall economic conditions, inflation, interest rates,
consumer and business spending, recession, and other general factors beyond the Group’'s control may have an
adverse effect on the Group’s business and financial performance.

2.4.2. Risks associated with the Group’s indebtedness

The Group has a material amount of debt, amounting to circa €174 million as at 30 June 2025, the main element
of which relates to obligations arising from the National Lottery Concession which is payable over the 10-year
concession term. The Group’s level of indebtedness represents approximately 66% of total assets, reflecting a
capital structure that remains supported by a substantial asset base and long-term concession-related cash
flows. The Group may, from time to time, incur additional debt for the purpose of refinancing indebtedness as
well as funding future growth in terms of both local business development and overseas opportunities.

Borrowings under any bank credit facilities may be at variable interest rates, which would render the Group
vulnerable toincreases in interest rates. Agreements regulating the Group’s indebtedness may impose significant
operating restrictions and financial covenants on the Group. These restrictions and covenants could limit the
Group’s ability to obtain future financing, incur capital expenditure, withstand a future downturn in business or
economic conditions generally, or otherwise inhibit the Group’s ability to freely conduct the necessary corporate
activities.



In the event that the Group’s generated cash flows were to be required to make principal and interest payments
on any further prospective debt, this could give rise to a reduction in the amount of cash available for distribution
by the Group, which would otherwise be available for funding of the Group’s working capital, capital expenditure,
development costs, and other general corporate costs, or for the distribution of dividends.

If the Group were to default on its obligations under its third-party financing arrangements, including, without
limitation, for late payment or breach of such covenants and undertakings, the Group may be liable to default
interest and, or contractual penalties, and third-party financiers may exercise or seek measures to enforce any
security interests constituted in their favour, or to exercise early termination rights and to request immediate
repayment of the loans or other financial indebtedness, together with any and all accrued interest. Furthermore,
the occurrence of an event of default under one loan or other third-party financing arrangement may give rise
to cross-defaults across the third-party financing arrangements of the Group. If the circumstances indicated
above were to manifest themselves, the Group’s financial position, operational results and its business and
trading prospects may be materially adversely affected, and the ability of the Company to satisfy its obligations
towards holders of debt or other securities, including its obligations towards the Bondholders under the Bonds,
may be materially adversely affected.

2.4.3. Risks associated with the Group’s financing and investment strategies

There can be no assurance that future capital requirements will always be met on commercially reasonable
terms. In addition, the Group may be exposed to a variety of financial risks associated with the unpredictability
of financial markets, including market risk (such as the risk associated with fluctuations in the fair values of
investments), credit risk (the risk of loss due to debtors not respecting their commitments), foreign exchange
rate risk, and interest rate risk (such as the risk of potential changes in the value of financial assets and liabilities
in response to changes in market interest rates and their impact on cash flows). Any downturn or weakness in
the capital markets or banking environment may limit the Group’s ability to raise capital for the completion of
projects. Failure to obtain, or delays in obtaining, the capital required to complete current or future projects on
commercially reasonable terms, including increases in borrowing costs or decreases in loan availability, may limit
the Group’s growth and adversely affect its business, financial condition, results of operations, and prospects.

2.4.4. Risks relating to taxation

The Group is likely to be subject to direct corporate taxation, indirect taxes, gaming taxes and other taxes, as may
be imposed by any of the jurisdictions in which it operates or intends to operate or with which it has ties. These
taxes could change, and new taxes may be introduced, which may result in an increase in the Group’s tax burden.
Similarly, while players’ winnings are not currently subject to tax or are taxed at lower rates in some jurisdictions,
this is also subject to changes which might make gaming less attractive to customers in those jurisdictions.

Non-compliance with tax regulation in any jurisdiction, whether accidental or because of the incorrect
interpretation oftax laws or disagreement with the authorities of a jurisdiction or resulting from any other reason,
may result in the Group being subject to additional costs of lengthy legal disputes and the payment of substantial
amounts of additional tax, interest and penalties for the Group.

Any event which results in an increase in the tax burden of the Group or its customers and, or related interest,
penalties and dispute and settlement costs, may lead to decreased revenues and have a material adverse effect
on its operations, earnings and overall financial position. Tax audits and investigations may also have a negative
effect on the Group’s reputation and divert management’s attention from their other duties, which may similarly
lead to decreased revenues and have a material adverse effect on its operations, earnings and overall financial
position.

2.5. REGULATORY AND LEGAL RISKS

2.5.1. Risks relating to the variation, revocation, suspension or non-renewal of licences and
concessions

The majority of the Issuer’s revenue is derived from the licensed and regulated gaming activities of: Dragonara
Gaming Limited, National Lottery p.l.c., and IZI Interactive Limited which are each in possession of a B2C Licence
issued by the MGA authorising them to offer Gaming Services; and IZI Services Limited which is in possession of
a B2B Licence issued by the MGA authorising it to provide a Critical Gaming Supply. Dragonara Gaming Limited
has been granted a concession to operate the Dragonara Casino as a land-based casino and National Lottery
p.l.c. has been granted a concession to operate the National Lottery Games Suite.



The abovementioned licences and concessions are issued for fixed periods of time and will all expire during the
term of the Bond Issue. Upon the lapse of that fixed period, each licensee and, or concessionaire is required to:
(i) apply for a renewal of any licences issued; and, or (i) where a concession was previously granted, take part
in an open call to tender for the new concession. The continued retention of these licences and concessions on
their current terms or on terms which are favourable to the Group, is crucial in order to secure the Issuer’s and
the Group’s continued operations in the gaming sector.

There is no guarantee that:

«  the Group’s respective licences and concessions will not be suspended or revoked;

« theterms and conditions of the Group’s licences will not be varied in a manner that is materially adverse to
the Group’s operations or profitability;

- thelicences will be renewed upon their expiration;

- any concession will be re-awarded to the Group following an open call to tender; or

- the Group will be successful in obtaining any new licences or concessions that may be required for future
operations or business expansion.

The non-renewal, suspension, or revocation of the Group’s licences could take place in a number of instances,
including but not limited to, where the licensees or concessionaires are in breach of their obligations emanating
from the relevant concession agreements, applicable laws or regulations or generally where the MGA or other
relevant governmental or regulatory authority, body or organisation considers a non-renewal, suspension,
variation or revocation to be in the national interest or in the interest of safeguarding the reputation of Malta.
The Group may also be unsuccessful in obtaining new licences or concessions, or renewing the same, where it
fails to meet regulatory requirements, where competing applicants are deemed more suitable, where there are
concerns regarding the financial stability ortechnical capability of the Group or where the relevant governmental
or regulatory authority, body or organisation determines that granting such licence or concession would not be
appropriate for any other reason, including on grounds of public policy or national interest.

The non-renewal, suspension or revocation of a licence issued by the MGA may, in turn, result in the termination of
the Dragonara Casino Concession and, orthe National Lottery Concession. Similarly, the suspension or revocation
of the Dragonara Casino Concession and, or the National Lottery Concession may result in the suspension or
revocation of the relevant licence issued by the MGA. Any suspension or revocation of a licence or concession,
any material variation to the terms of any licence or concession, the inability to renew existing licences or to
renew them on their current terms, the failure to be re-awarded existing concessions, or the inability to obtain
new licences or concessions where required, could have a material negative impact on the Group’s business,
financial position and results of operations.

Even if the licences or concessions are renewed or re-awarded, as applicable, the terms of the licences and
concessions may not be issued on the same terms as previously granted. Such variations to the previous terms
may be in response to changes in regulatory policy, legislative amendments, evolving regulatory standards,
changes in government policy or public interest concerns, amongst others. The inability to obtain new licences
or concessions, where required, on the same or similar terms which are favourable to the Group could have a
material adverse effect on the Group’s business, financial position and profit.

2.5.2. Risks relating to anti-money laundering and fraud

The Group handles a large number of financial transactions within the ordinary course of business and is
therefore exposed to risks relating to money laundering and fraud. The Group is required to implement rigorous
policies and procedures in relation to the prevention and detection of such fraudulent and money laundering
activities in their gaming operations and is also under an obligation to report any suspicious transactions to
the competent authorities. If the Group fails to detect and report suspicious transactions, it may be subject to
criminal sanctions or administrative fines. Any such failure could also result in the suspension and, or revocation
of concessions and licences, the imposition of operational bans, or a loss in confidence of its customer base, any
of which could have a material adverse effect on the Group’s business, financial position and profit.

2.5.3. Risks relating to the Group’s dependence on new laws and regulations
The Group operates in a highly regulated industry and is subject to risks related to the introduction and

implementation of new laws and amendments to existing legislation. Although the introduction of new laws and,
or amendments to existing legislation is often driven by considerations relating to the prevention or reduction



of problem gambling and gaming by minors and generally the protection of players, the continued introduction
of new rules and regulations leads to less predictability which may undermine the Group’s ability to adopt and
implement these changes in an accurate and efficient manner. Potential legislative changes may have a material
negative impact on the Group’s operations, earnings and financial position.

2.5.4. Risks relating to the collection, processing and storage of personal data

The Group collects, processes and stores personal data relating to its customers and employees. Such data
processing activities are subject to the rules governing the processing of personal data in terms of the Data
Protection Act (Cap. 586 of the laws of Malta) and subsidiary legislation issued thereunder (collectively, the “DPA”),
and the General Data Protection Regulation (EU) No. 2016/679 (the “GDPR”).

Although the Group's online gaming operations predominantly target the local Maltese market, I1ZI Interactive
Limited, through its B2C Licence, also provides its services to additional jurisdictions where the B2C Licence is
recognised andthe provision of services interms ofthat licence is permitted. As the Group expands its operations
into new markets, including potentially jurisdictions outside the European Union, it will become subject to an
increasingly complex and evolving landscape of data protection and privacy laws. Different jurisdictions maintain
distinct regulatory frameworks with varying requirements, interpretations and enforcement approaches
regarding the collection, processing, storage, transfer and protection of personal data.

The Group must ensure compliance withthe data protection laws applicable in eachjurisdiction where it operates
or where it processes personal data. These laws continue to evolve, with new legislation being enacted and
existing frameworks being amended, creating ongoing compliance challenges. The Group must familiarise itself
with the specific requirements, interpretations and implementation guidance issued by the relevant supervisory
authorities of each applicable jurisdiction, which would entail the need for more resources, expertise and an
increase in compliance costs. The risk is that the Group’s implementation of data protection measures may not
be considered sufficient or compliant by one or more supervisory authorities, particularly where regulatory
expectations or interpretations differ across jurisdictions or where requirements conflict with one another.

Breaches of data privacy legislation could result in the Group being subject to claims by its customers for
infringement of privacy rights. Should any such claims be brought, the Group could face administrative
proceedings (including criminal proceedings) initiated by data protection regulators, which could result in
substantial penalties. Under the GDPR, administrative penalties may reach up to 4% of annual worldwide turnover
or €20 million, whichever is the highest for serious breaches, and up to 2% of annual worldwide turnover or
€10 million, whichever is the highest in the case of specified infringements listed therein. Any inquiries or
proceedings initiated by the relevant regulator could lead to negative publicity, which could negatively impact
the Group’s reputation and, as a result, its business, earnings, and, or financial condition. In addition, the Group
may be subject to civil proceedings initiated by data subjects who are of the view that their rights pertaining to
the protection of their personal data have been infringed by the Group and such proceedings could lead to
damages (including moral damages) being awarded to the affected data subject.

Furthermore, in the context of the Group’'s gaming operations, data protection breaches may have additional
regulatory consequences beyond those imposed by data protection authorities. Failures to comply with data
protection obligations can constitute grounds for enforcement action under gaming regulations, potentially
resulting in warnings, fines or, in severe cases, licence suspension or revocation or non-renewal of existing
licences. Similar consequences may apply in other gaming jurisdictions where the Group operates or may
operate in the future.

Ifthe data processing activities of the Group, or any of its third-party service providers, are found to be in breach
of the DPA, the GDPR, or any other applicable data protection or privacy laws, the Group may be exposed to
significant fines, increased supervision, enforcement action by gaming regulators (including, the suspension,
revocation or non-renewal of existing licences, or the refusal of a new application for a licence), as well as claims
instituted by customers, possibly claiming damages (including moral damages such as reputational damages).
Should such risks materialise, this could have a material negative effect on the operations, earnings and financial
position of the Group.

2.5.5. Exposure to claims and litigation

Since the Group operates in an industry which involves the continuous provision of products and services
to customers and such operation necessarily requires continuous interaction with customers, suppliers,
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employees, regulatory authorities, and other stakeholders, the Group is exposed to the risk of litigation from
such stakeholders or fines imposed by regulatory authorities in the jurisdictions in which the Group operates.
Adverse publicity from such allegations may negatively impact the turnover generated by the Group regardless
of whether such allegations are true or whether the Group is ultimately held liable. All litigation is expensive, time
consuming and may divert management’s time and resources away from the operation of the business of the
Group. In addition, the Group cannot be certain that its insurance coverage will be sufficient to cover one or
more substantial claims. No assurance can be given that disputes which could have a material adverse effect on
the Group’s financial condition or operational performance would not arise in the future. Exposure to litigation
or penalties, fines or other sanctions imposed by the relevant authorities may affect the Group’s reputation even
though the monetary consequences may not be significant.

2.6. BUSINESS AND OPERATIONAL RISKS
2.6.1. Riskrelating to the concentration of the Group’s operations in the gaming industry in Malta

The maijority of the Group’s revenue stream is generated from the gaming industry in Malta, exposing the Issuer
to both single sector concentration risk and geographic concentration risk.

The Group’s revenue generation potential is dependent on the reputation and status of the gaming industry in
Malta, and most of the Group’s revenue is generated from players based in Malta.

The risk inherent in concentrating substantial investments in a single industry and one principal target market,
rather than a diversified portfolio of assets and geographic markets, is that a decline in such industry or target
market could have an adverse effect on the financial condition of the Group. Such decline may be triggered
by various factors including: adverse economic conditions affecting consumer discretionary spending,
unfavourable changes to legislation or regulatory policy, shifts in consumer behaviour or preferences, increased
competition from both regulated and unregulated operators, reputational damage to the Maltese gaming sector,
or operational challenges including reliance on physical venues, security and integrity of gaming systems, and
compliance costs. Inthe event that any of these factors were to materialise, this could adversely affect the Group’s
performance, profitability and future prospects.

2.6.2. Risks relating to key personnel and senior management

The success of the Group’s business is largely reliant on the Group’s ability to attract, train, motivate and retain
highly skilled, competent, and experienced personnel in both the land-based and remote gaming industry.

There is a high demand for certain competences within the gaming industry due to the lack of individuals
who are trained and qualified in certain areas such as IT. and thus, there is greater difficulty in retaining said
individuals. Notwithstanding the Group’s efforts to train and retain employees, there is still a risk that the Group’s
key personnel will decide to terminate their employment relationships with the Group. This, in turn, will require
the Group to devote time and resources in replacing such individuals with other professionals with the same or
similar levels of skill and experience or covering their positions until an appropriate replacement may be found.
Employee turnover, particularly of highly skilled and experienced professionals, could have an adverse effect on
the Group’s business and operations.

2.6.3. Risks relating to competition

The Group operates in a highly competitive gaming landscape. As at the date of this Registration Document,
there are three active land-based casino concessions and four operational land-based casinos in Malta, one of
which is the Dragonara Casino. The Group enjoys approximately 39%' of the land-based casino market sector and
enjoys market leadership in all the other product verticals that are open for competition, namely sports betting
and EGMs outside of casinos. The Group is also active in the highly competitive online gaming sector through
the domains: www.lottery.mt (offering online lotteries); www.dragonara.com (offering online casino); www.izibet.
com (offering online sports betting and casino); and shortly www.izibingo.mt (offering online bingo and casino).
The online gaming sector, unlike the land-based gaming sector, is serviced by a large number of operators.

The Group’s success and growth is dependent on its ability to maintain and improve its respective market
positions, anticipate and respond to changes in customer behaviour and technological developments efficiently

7 MGA Annual Report 2024 and Dragonara Gaming Limited audited financial statements of FY2025.



and successfully and invest in effective marketing strategies. Moreover, the number of competitors in the market
is increasing and thus, the Group’s competitive advantage may also be dependent on its ability to merge with or
acquire other companies, businesses and, or brands which are well-established in the industry. Failure to keep
up with its competition could mean that the Group risks losing its business and revenue to its competitors. This
could have a material adverse effect on the Group’s business, operations and its financial position.

2.6.4. Risks relating to international expansion

As further described in section 5.3.1 of this Registration Document, the Group intends to expand its operations in
jurisdictions outside its home market of Malta, whether within or outside the EU.

The expansion of the Group’s operations in different jurisdictions exposes it to various risks specific to those
jurisdictions including, but not limited to:

« regulatory and licensing risks: the gaming industry is subject to extensive and varying regulatory
frameworks across different jurisdictions. The Group may face challenges in obtaining, maintaining or
renewing gaming licences in foreign markets, each of which may impose different licensing conditions,
compliance requirements, player protection standards, responsible gaming obligations, anti-money
laundering requirements, and data protection rules. Changes in gaming laws or regulatory policies in any
jurisdiction where the Group intends to operate could require significant operational changes, increase
compliance costs, restrict the Group’s ability to offer certain products or services, or result in the suspension
or revocation of licences. Regulatory authorities in foreign jurisdictions may also impose fines, penalties or
other sanctions for non-compliance, which could be substantial;

- enforcementand legal remedy limitations: the Group may face substantial difficulties in enforcing contractual
and legal rights in certain foreign jurisdictions due to differences in legal systems, judicial processes and the
effectiveness of legal remedies. In the event of disputes with local partners, suppliers, regulators or other
parties, the Group may find it difficult or impossible to obtain effective legal recourse. Similarly, the Group’s
ability to protect its intellectual property rights, enforce non-compete agreements, or pursue claims for
breach of contract may be limited in certain markets. Even if successful in obtaining judgments, the Group
may be unable to enforce such judgments or collect damages;

- political, economic and operational risks: the Group’s foreign operations may be exposed to political and
economic instability, changes in government policies (including taxation and foreign ownership restrictions),
security threats, corruption risks, and adverse changes in the business environment. Economic downturns
or reduced consumer discretionary spending in foreign markets could negatively impact gaming revenues.
The Group may also face currency exchange fluctuations, restrictions on the repatriation of profits,
challenges in managing cross-border operations, cultural and operational differences, increased costs of
doing business, difficulties in recruiting and retaining qualified personnel, and competition from local and
international operators (both regulated and unregulated); and

- reputational and compliance risks: operating in foreign jurisdictions may expose the Group to reputational
risks, particularly if the Group operates in markets with different ESG standards, responsible gaming
expectations, or anti-corruption frameworks. Association with local partners, government entities or markets
perceived as high-risk could damage the Group’s reputation and affect its relationships with stakeholders,
financial institutions, suppliers and regulators in other markets.

Any unforeseen operational, regulatory, and economic challenges, including but not limited to those described
above, could lead to increased costs, reduced revenues, asset impairments, loss of licences, regulatory sanctions,
and reputational damage. Moreover, there can be no assurance that any anticipated business opportunities in
foreign jurisdictions will materialise or that the expected benefits of the Group’s international expansion strategy
will be realised. The occurrence of any of the foregoing risks could have a material adverse effect on the Group’s
financial condition, results of operations and future prospects.

2.6.5. Risks relating to the use or challenge of intellectual property by third parties

The Group’s main intellectual property rights are its brand names, domain names, trademarks and goodwill
relating to the Dragonara Casino brand and the IZIBET brand. It has also been granted an exclusive licence to
use the National Lottery Intellectual Property Rights by the Government of Malta. The success and growth of the
Group is also dependent on its ability to protect and enforce these intellectual property rights.



The Group is exposed to the risks that its competitors or other third parties may attempt to use, challenge or,
in so far as not previously registered by the Group, register the intellectual property rights of the Group. The
Group may also be exposed to claims or actions brought against it by third parties alleging infringement of their
intellectual property rights. If the Group fails to successfully defend such actions, the Group may be ordered to
discontinue using the intellectual property in question and to compensate such third parties.

2.6.6. Risks relating to I.T. systems

The Group is highly dependent on the efficient and uninterrupted operations of its internal and external IT.
systems in order to provide a competitive service which meets its customers’ expectations and ensure the safe
transmission of personal data and other confidential information. The Group therefore substantially invests
resources in maintaining and developing its I T. systems. Nonetheless, the Group’s IT. systems may be subject to
failure, disruption or other interruption or malfunction because of various factors which may be out ofthe Group’s
control such as natural disasters, electricity shortages and, or technical malfunctions. Apart from the foregoing,
the Group’s IT. systems are also at risk of being the target of cyber-attacks, data theft or other unauthorised
access to or use of data, errors, bugs, inadequate maintenance service levels, or other malicious interference
with or disruptions to their I.T. and other technological systems.

The results of the occurrence of the above would be a disruption in the Group’s activities and may also lead to a
leakage of personal data pertaining to its customers and, or employees, confidential information or other trade
secrets. Any operational disruption, technical problems, failure to develop new IT. systems or a leak of personal
data or other confidential information could therefore have a material adverse effect on the operating results of
the Group, its financial condition and prospects.

2.6.7. Risks arising from third-party supplier relationships and dependencies

In the day-to-day operation of its business, the Group depends largely on third parties for the supply of games,
gaming software, gaming devices, technical solutions, IT. services, information services, payment services,
marketing services, compliance-related services and alternative dispute resolution services, amongst other
services.

Where one or more such suppliers default on their obligations to the Group, or where the Group experiences a
disruption in these services for whatever reason, such default and, or disruption could result in, amongst others:

- the Group’s inability to offer its products and services and to meet its obligations towards its customers,
leading to loss of revenue and market share;

- breachesofregulatory obligations, potentially resulting in enforcement actions, fines, penalties or suspension
or revocation of licences and potentially triggering supplier termination rights;

- failure to meet contractual commitments exposing the Group to claims, compensation obligations and
reputational damage;

- degradation of service quality or customer experience, leading to reduced customer loyalty;

- damage to the Group’s brand reputation and competitive position in the market; and

- reduced profitability and adverse effects on the Group financial condition.

Furthermore, there is no guarantee that the Group will be successful in recovering any losses suffered thereby
as a result of third-party supplier failures, particularly when the supplier lacks financial resources, insurance
coverage, or where contractual limitations of liability restrict the Group’s remedies.

In addition, there is a risk of termination or non-renewal of these agreements with suppliers, and the Group
may encounter difficulties in seeking and contracting with alternative third-party suppliers in a timely and cost-
effective manner and on the same or similar terms. In the event of termination or non-renewal of agreements
with significant suppliers, the Group may face substantial challenges in:

- identifying and engaging suitable alternative suppliers with comparable capabilities, service levels, and
regulatory compliance standards;

«  negotiating replacement agreements on commercially acceptable terms within required timeframes;

- implementing technical integrations and operational transitions to alternative platforms or services without
significant business disruption;

« managing the costs associated with supplier transitions, which may include termination fees, implementation
costs, dual-running expenses, and premium pricing from replacement suppliers; and

- maintaining service continuity during transition periods.



In certain cases, the Group may have limited alternatives to existing suppliers due to market concentration,
proprietarytechnology, regulatory requirements, or contractual restrictions that limit the Group’s ability to engage
multiple providers or switch providers. Certain critical supplier relationships involve long-term commitments
and provide systems essential for regulatory compliance, creating heightened dependency risks and reducing
the Group’s flexibility to mitigate supplier-related disruptions through alternative arrangements.

Other critical supplier relationships contain provisions that create heightened operational and financial risks
beyond typical commercial arrangements, including: (i) the supplier’s right to suspend services for payment
defaults whilst payment obligations continue to accrue; (i) acceleration of all future payment obligations upon
defaults or early termination; (iii) the supplier’s right to repossess equipment without notice or legal process,
including entering the Group's premises, with the Group having waived damages claims. The Group’s own
breaches or failures (including payment defaults, regulatory compliance failures, or breach of operational
restrictions) could create significant operational vulnerabilities and financial exposures that could result in
immediate business disruption, accelerated payment obligations, and loss of critical services with limited
remedies available to the Group.

Where the risks arising from third-party supplier relationships and dependencies were to materialise, these
would negatively affect the Group’s reputation, market position, operations and financial condition.

2.6.8. Risks relating to the Group’s dependence on incoming tourism

The Group's land-based casino operations and retail operations are, to an extent, dependent on the tourism
industry. The number and type of tourists visiting Malta are subject to a number of external factors that could
adversely affect the Group’s business, many of which are beyond the Group’s control such as:

- changesintravel patterns or seasonal variations, as well as consumer preferences concerning price, quality,
location and type of hospitality packages;

« anycutbacks and stoppages on air or sea travel routes between Malta and other key destinations throughout
the year, or increase in taxes, surcharges and other expenses associated therewith, as well as the imposition
of travel restrictions, bans or other measures by various governmental authorities;

. changes in laws and regulations, including those concerning the management and operation of
entertainment establishments, health and safety, alcohol licensing, environmental concerns, fiscal policies
and zoning and development, and the related costs of compliance;

- theimpactofincreasedthreats ofterrorism oractualterrorist events,impedimentsto means oftransportation
(including airline strikes and border closures, or other travel restrictions), extreme weather conditions,
natural disasters, travel-related accidents, outbreaks of diseases and health concerns, or other factors that
may affect travel patterns and reduce the number of travelers; and

- the outbreak of pandemics, resulting in the imposition of lockdowns and other travel restrictions which in
turn may result in the cancellation of planned routes and decrease in flight frequency of planned routes.
Changes in travel patterns may have an effect on the number and quality of foreigners visiting Malta and the
frequency of their visits.

The impact of any of these factors (or a combination of them) may adversely affect the number of tourists visiting
the Dragonara Casino, and albeit to a lesser extent since the customer base is largely local, the National Lottery
outlets. This could, in turn, have a material adverse effect on the Group’s business, financial condition and results
of operation.

The Group’s land-based gaming operations are also dependent on the collective efforts of the industry, support
from the competent regulatory authorities and collaboration between airline operators, hotel operators and
tour operators to increase the exposure for Malta as a casino tourism destination, to ensure that key markets are
well-catered for and to avoid (and where not possible, mitigate) any degradation in quality and, or service levels
for guests. The land-based operations of the Group could be adversely affected by such delays, errors, failures
or faults which could affect the financial position of the Issuer.

2.6.9. Risks connected with the Group’s insurance cover

The Group has maintained insurance at levels which they have determined to be appropriate in light of the cost
of cover and the risk profiles of the sectors in which they operate. However, it may be difficult and may take
time to recover losses from insurers, as and when necessary. Any one of the Subsidiaries of the Issuer may not
be able to recover the full amount from the insurer due to procedural restrictions or formalities, or substantive
exclusions,exemptions, limitations on coverage, de minimis liability coverage limitations, prescriptive time periods
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and limitations, reporting or other disclosure requirements, licensing or other authorisation or registration
requirements, breach of restrictive covenants or undertakings, breach of warranties and, or representations,
as well as restrictions or formalities relating to the initiation of, and control over, litigation, investigations or other
proceedings relating thereto. No assurance can be given that the Group’s current insurance coverage would be
sufficient to cover all potential losses, regardless of the cause, nor can any assurance be given that appropriate
coverage would always be available at acceptable commercial rates. In addition, changes in legislation or
judicial interpretation, or the issuance or alteration of directives, orders, or other measures (whether interim or
otherwise), by the relevant authorities (including but not limited to governmental departments or authorities,
planning authorities, health & safety authorities and environmental authorities, among others) may impact the
ability to recoup losses under insurance coverage held by the Issuer’s respective Subsidiary. Furthermore, the
actions or inactions of either the Group’s employees or other officials or that of contractors, outsourcing parties,
or other third parties engaged thereby from time to time may affect the Group’s ability to successfully make a
claim under its insurance policies.

2.6.10. Risks relating to environmental, social and governance considerations

There is a growing expectation for enterprises to integrate sustainability risks into their day-to-day management
and decision-making processes. Sustainability risks refer to any environmental, social or governance event or
condition that, if it occurs, could cause an actual or a potential material negative impact on the value of an
investment.

It is expected that the integration and implementation of social and governance factors into gaming companies’
day-to-day operations will continue to gain prominence, putting the gaming industry under increased scrutiny
by investors, regulators, and the public at large. Towards the objective of implementing a more sustainable
business model, the Group is committed towards the continued assessment of existing measures and policies to
address social and governmental issues such as responsible gaming and player protection, ethical marketing,
customer data integrity, cyber security and anti-corruption and money laundering.

Failure by the Group to consider its social responsibility and implement policies and measures that promote
diversity and well-being within the workplace may result in the Group being unable to attract the right type of
employees, including new employees. Moreover, should the Group fail to operate its business in a sustainable
manner, aside from any fines which may be imposed due to non-compliance of sustainability-driven regulations,
this may also have a material adverse effect on the Group’s relationship with players, gaming providers and
suppliers, governing bodies and other stakeholders with the result that its reputation and public image may be
adversely affected and restrict its ability to develop new brands or maintain competitive positioning in the market.
This, in turn, may have a material adverse impact on the Group’s revenues, financial condition and operations.

<+ 3. IDENTITY OF DIRECTORS, ADVISERS AND
AUDITORS OF THE ISSUE

3.1. DIRECTORS OF THE ISSUER

As at the date of this Registration Document, the Board of Directors of the Issuer is constituted by the following
persons:

NAME DESIGNATION

Christian Gernert Executive Director and Chairman
Austrian Passport No: U3486929

Johann Schembri Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
Maltese ID Card No: 540875M

Franco De Gabriele Executive Director and Chief Commercial Officer
Maltese ID Card No: 75270M

Jacqueline Camilleri Independent Non-Executive Director
Maltese ID Card No: 340768M
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Stephanie Fabri Independent Non-Executive Director
Maltese ID Card No: 368486M

Otto Karasek Independent Non-Executive Director
Austrian Passport No: U4349211

Louis De Gabriele, holder of Maltese identity card numlber 136664M, is the company secretary of the Issuer.

The business address of the Directors and the Company Secretary is the same as that of the Issuer.

3.2. RESPONSIBILITY AND AUTHORISATION STATEMENT

The Directors, whose names appear in section 3.1 above, are the persons responsible for the information
contained in this Registration Document. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Directors (who have
all taken reasonable care to ensure such is the case), the information contained in this Registration Document
is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information. The
Directors accept responsibility accordingly.

The Registration Document has been approved by the MFSA as the competent authority in Malta under the
Prospectus Regulation. The MFSA has only approved the Registration Document as meeting the standards of
completeness, comprehensibility and consistency imposed by the Prospectus Regulation and such approval
should not be considered as an endorsement of the Issuer or the Group (as the subjects of the Registration
Document).

3.3. ADVISERS

The persons listed hereunder have advised and assisted the Directors in the drafting and compilation of the
Prospectus, but they do not make any representation or statement unless otherwise expressly stated in the
Prospectus, and each of them disclaims any responsibility for any representations and other statements made
in the Prospectus.

Legal Advisers
Name: Camilleri Preziosi
Address: Level 3, Valletta Buildings,
South Street,
Valletta VLT 1103, Malta

Financial Advisers
Name: Grant Thornton
Address: Fort Business Centre, Level 2,
Trig L-Intornjatur, Zone 1,
Central Business District, Birkirkara CBD 1050, Malta

Sponsor & Co-Manager

Name: Rizzo, Farrugia & Co (Stockbrokers) Ltd
Address: Airways House, Fourth Floor,
High Street,

Sliema SLM 1551, Malta

Registrar & Co-Manager

Name: Bank of Valletta p.l.c.

Address: 58, Zachary Street,
Valletta VLT 1130, Malta

3.4. AUDITORS

Name: Grant Thornton
Address: Fort Business Centre, Level 2,
Trig L-Intornjatur, Zone 1,
Central Business District, Birkirkara CBD 1050, Malta
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The annual statutory financial statements of the Issuer for the financial years ended 30 June 2023, 2024, and 2025
have been audited by Grant Thornton. Grant Thornton is a firm of certified public auditors holding a warrant to
practice the profession of auditors in terms of the Accountancy Profession Act (Cap. 281 of the laws of Malta). The
Accountancy Board registration number of Grant Thornton is AB/26/84/22.

<+ 4.INFORMATION ABOUT THE ISSUER

4.1. GENERALINFORMATION

Full legal and commercial IZI Finance p.l.c.
name of the Issuer

Registered address The Quad Central, Q3 Level 11, Trig |-Esportaturi, Zone 1, Central Business
District, Birkirkara CBD 1040

Place of registration and Malta
domicile

Company registration C 101228
number

Legal Entity Identifier (‘LEI’) 485100W7KB2YAMBF9C63
Date of registration 30 December 2021

Legal form The Issuer is lawfully existing and registered as a public limited liability
company in terms of the Act

Telephone number +356 2600 7007
Email IR@izigroup.com
Website https://izigroup.com/investors/

Unless specifically stated herein that particular information is incorporated by reference into the Prospectus, the
contents of the Issuer’s website or any other website directly or indirectly linked to the Issuer’s website, or any
other website referred to herein, do not form part of the Prospectus. Accordingly, no reliance ought to be made
by any investor on any information or other data contained in such websites as a basis for a decision to invest in
the securities.

The Directors are not aware of any material change in the Issuer’s borrowing and funding structure since the
date of its incorporation.
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4.2,

ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE OF THE GROUP

The organisational structure of the Group as at the date of this Registration Document is illustrated in the
organigram hereunder:

Johann Schembri
Founder & UBO

100%

JGS Corporate Holdings
Limited C 34215
Holding Company
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Holding Company
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— 60% —
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—100% —

—100% —

—100% —
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National Lottery plc C 100229
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National Lottery of Malta

Dr Christian Gernert
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FN222160g (AT)

Peninsula Gaming Group Ltd Dragonara Gaming Ltd Dragonara Catering Ltd
C 47380 100% — C 49848 L 100% C 5041
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IZl International SARL | ______ 20% oy
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I
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| | | | |
1ZI Entertainment 171 Services Ltd 1ZIBET GmbH Triple Crown SARL 1ZI BRAZIL Ltda
GmbH C 108515 FN 667686f (AT) Reg No B294998 Reg No
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The Issuer was incorporated on the 30 December 2021 as the holding and finance company of the Group.

Upon incorporation, the Issuer was directly owned by JGS Corporate Holdings Limited (C 34215) (the beneficial
owner of which is Mr Johann Schembri), save for one (1) share held by Mr Johann Schembri in his own name.
JGS Corporate Holdings Limited was incorporated on 30 June 2004 under the name ‘Pinnacle Gaming Group
Limited’. On 22 June 2021, the company changed its status to a public limited liability company and simultaneously
changed its name to ‘IZI Group p.l.c. Following the transfer of the one (1) share held by National Lottery p.l.c. to
Mr Johann Schembri, the company was converted into a single member company, wholly owned by Mr Johann
Schembri,and its name was subsequently changed to ‘1ZI Group Limited’, and thereafter, UGS Corporate Holdings
Limited’.

On 19 January 2026, a new company was incorporated under the name 1ZI Group Limited (C 114519). IZI Group
Limited is owned as to 95% by JGS Corporate Holdings Limited, the beneficial owner of which is Mr Johann
Schembri, and as to 5% by Panther Gaming Ltd (C 11275), the beneficial owner of which is Dr Christian Gernert.

On 24 February 2026, JGS Corporate Holdings Limited transferred all of the shares it held in the Issuer (being
80,000,000 Ordinary A shares having a nominal value of €1.00 Euro each) to the newly incorporated company, 1ZI
Group Limited. As a result of the share transfer, the Issuer is directly owned by 1ZI Group Limited, save for one (1)
share held by Mr Johann Schembri in his own name.?

A brief overview of the activities of each of the Subsidiaries is set out below:
Dragonara Casino

«  Peninsula Gaming Group Limited was incorporated on 24 July 2009. It is the holding company of Dragonara
Gaming Limited, Dragonara Interactive Limited and Dragonara IP Limited. Itisthe owner of certaintrademarks
relating to the Dragonara Casino, with the remaining Dragonara Intellectual Property Rights owned by
Dragonara IP Limited.

«  Dragonara Gaming Limited was incorporated on 4 June 2010. It is a B2C Operator and is the concessionaire
and temporary sub-emphyteuta of the Dragonara Casino. Further information on the operations of the
Dragonara Casino is set out in section 6.2 of this Registration Document.

- Dragonara Catering Limited was incorporated on 10 August 2010. It provides catering and other ancillary
support services to the Dragonara Casino. The services include, amongst others, the administration of all
food & beverage services and the organisation and management of private functions and events within the
Dragonara Casino.

- Dragonara IP Limited was incorporated on 25 February 2025. It is the owner of the Dragonara Intellectual
Property Rights (save for the trademarks owned by Peninsula Gaming Group Limited) and licences the said
intellectual property to Dragonara Gaming Limited and Dragonara Interactive Limited.

- Dragonara Interactive Limited was incorporated on 29 August 2013. It purchases the royalty rights to the
domain “dragonara.com” from Dragonara IP Limited and, in turn, licenses said rights to I1ZI Interactive Limited
at a margin.

National Lottery

- National Lottery p.l.c. was incorporated on 16 September 2021 and is the concessionaire of the National
Lottery.

Effective as of 20 December 2023, Gaming Operations Limited - previously a fully owned subsidiary of the
Issuer and a B2C Operator responsible for the Group’s retail gaming operations - amalgamated into National
Lottery p.l.c. As a result of the amalgamation, National Lottery p.l.c. acquired all the assets and liabilities of
Gaming Operations Limited, and the latter company ceased to exist. Accordingly, National Lottery p.l.c. now
operates both the National Lottery Concession and the retail gaming operations of the Group under its
licence.

2 Note to Reader: As at the date of this Registration Document, notwithstanding that the information relative to the change in
shareholding of the Issuer has been submitted to the competent authorities, the online database of the Malta Business Registry is yet
to be updated to reflect the completion of the abovementioned transfer of shares.

24



Further information on the operations of National Lottery p.l.c. as well as information on the National Lottery
are set out in section 6.2 of this Registration Document.

- Pinnacle IP Limited was incorporated on 11 February 2019. It is the owner of the IZIBET Intellectual Property
Rights and licences the said intellectual property to National Lottery p.l.c.

iGaming

- 1ZI Interactive Limited was incorporated on 19 May 2016. It is a B2C Operator and is responsible for the
Group’s online gaming operations providing sports betting, online lotteries and casino games under izibet.
com, dragonara.com and lottery.mt. Further information on the operations of IZI Interactive Limited as well as
information on the Group’s online gaming operations are set out in section 6.2 of this Registration Document.

International operations

« IZlInternational SARL was incorporated in Luxembourg on 24 February 2025. IZI International SARL will serve
as the international holding company of the Group’'s new ventures outside of Malta. The ownership structure
of 1ZI International SARL is as follows: 80% held by the Issuer and the remaining 20% held by Codego GmbH
(Austrian company registration no. 2221609).

As at the date of this Registration Document, through IZI International SARL, the Group has established orisin
the process of establishing the following overseas companies which will serve as special purpose vehicles
for the Group’s international opportunities:

- 1ZlI Services Limited was incorporated in Malta on 8 May 2024 and was set up as a B2B provider for National
Lottery p.l.c.and all active foreign-based subsidiaries of the Group (bearing MGA licence MGA/B2B/1054/2024).
It operates as a cost centre to the Group, including in respect of expenses and purchases that are essential
to the provision of games by other Group entities.

« I1ZI Entertainment GmbH was incorporated in Austria on 4 July 2025 and was established with the intention of
providing retail gaming services in Austria.

«  Triple Crown SARL was incorporated in Luxembourg on 31 March 2025. While not yet in operation, the
company was established with the intention of pursuing opportunities related to the provision of Historical
Horse Racing (HHR) in both EU and non-EU markets.

- 1ZI Brazil Ltda was incorporated in Brazil on 1 September 2025, and was established to pursue land-based
gaming opportunities in Brazil and the wider Latin America region.

« I1ZIBET GmbH was incorporated in Austria on 3 December 2025. While not yet in operation, the company was
established with the intention of obtaining a sports betting licence to service the Austrian market.

Other group companies

« 1ZIGroup Services Limited wasincorporated on 8 May 2024 and provides human resources and management
services within the Group. The centralised functions of the Group (including but not limited to the C-Suite
employees, the finance department, the HR department and the IT department) are employed by 1ZI Group
Services Limited. Administrative costs are recharged proportionately to the relevant operating companies
within the Group.

- 1ZI Properties Limited (formerly known as St. George Developments Limited) was incorporated on 6 May
2016 and is a property development and management company, principally engaged to hold, develop,
administer, maintain and manage any immovable properties held by the Group.

On 29 October 2024, O2 Estates Limited (C 82197) merged with 1ZI Properties Limited, consolidating all
investment properties under a single entity.

IZI Properties Limited holds a diversified portfolio of land and buildings in Malta, primarily for capital
appreciation and rental income purposes, comprising the following:

- anarable land in Ta’ Minka, Wardija, measuring approximately 4,347 sqm;

- aresidential property in Balzan, held for potential capital appreciation;
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- a property in St. Julian’s held under a 30-year emphyteusis commencing on 20 July 2020 which was
developed for rental purposes. The development is completed and available for lease in FY 2026. As at
the date of this Registration Document, the ground floor commercial outlet is leased to a related party
(National Lottery p.l.c.) as a National Lottery point of sale, while another five (5) residential apartments are
intended to be leased to third parties;

- acommercial outlet in Sliema, generating rental income from a related party (National Lottery p.l.c); and

- one plot of land in Naxxar and two plots of land in St. Paul’s Bay, held for potential capital appreciation.

The Group, through I1ZI Properties Limited, holds a 22.2% voting and equity interest in Confident Limited (C
78162), a company currently in dissolution that was previously engaged in the purchase, sale, development,
and improvement of land and buildings for investment purposes.

<+ 5.BUSINESS OVERVIEW

5.1.

Historical Development of the Group

The Group was originally known as Pinnacle Gaming Group (“PGG”) until a rebranding exercise in 2021, undertaken
in the run-up to the Group’s participation in the open call to tender for the National Lottery Concession. During
this period, the Issuer was established as a holding and financing arm of the Group. The key events pertaining to
the development of the Group are set out below:
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In 2002, PGG set up a state-of-the-art commercial bingo operation after securing its first gaming licence
from the Malta Gaming Board, the predecessor to the MGA.

In 2004, the organisation laid its foundation with the establishment of Pinnacle Gaming Group Limited (PGG),
which later evolved into IZIGROUP..

In 2006, PGG, through a joint venture with International Game Technology, launched a class Il electronic
bingo operation in Malta, representing the first installation of its kind in Europe.

In 2007, PGG expanded into the Amusement with Prize (“AWP”) market and established itself as the largest
AWP route operator, managing a network of both owned and third-party establishments.

In 2009, PGG spearheaded the formation of the Novomatic Peninsula Consortium, comprising PGG,
Novomatic Gaming Industries GmbH (FN109445Z) and Toss-A-Coin Limited (C 34067), a member of the Bianchi
group of companies. The consortium was established to bid for the international call for proposals for the
management and operation of the Dragonara Casino and was successful against local and international
competition.

On 30 June 2010, Dragonara Gaming Limited was established and granted the concession and licence for
the management and operation of the Dragonara Casino by the Government of Malta and the MGA (then
known as the Lotteries and Gaming Authority). Casma Limited (C 8930), a company ultimately owned by
the Government of Malta, granted, by title of lease, unto Dragonara Gaming Limited, the Dragonara Casino
Palace for aninitial period of 10 years, commencing on 30 June 2010. Dragonara Gaming Limited commmenced
operations of the Dragonara Casino on 15 July 2010, following a smooth transition from Groupe Barriere.

In 2012, following approval from the MGA, the Group set up a nationwide network of high-street establishments
offering EGMs under the then newly introduced regulations governing Controlled Gaming Premises.

In the same year, the Group acquired a majority stake in Dragonara Gaming Limited through the acquisition
of shares from Novomatic Gaming Industries GmbH.

In 2013, the Group ventured into online gaming and began offering its land-based products through
interactive channels.

In 2014, the Group acquired the entire issued share capital of Gaming Operations Limited, a company which
was licensed to operate a network of Controlled Gaming Premises for the provision of retail gaming services
and to operate a commercial bingo hall.



- In2015,MrJohann Schembri acquired full control of the Group following a buy-out of the other two founding
members.

In the same year, the Group developed a sports betting product that fulfilled all technical requirements
under the Gaming Devices Regulations, enabling the introduction of an alternative to the sports betting
services previously offered exclusively by Maltco Lotteries Limited (C 32326) (“Maltco Lotteries”), a subsidiary
of the Intralot Group, since 2004. The product was launched under the IZIBET brand.

+ In 2016, the Group expanded its digital footprint with the establishment of 1ZI Interactive Limited, securing a
B2C online gaming licence from the MGA.

- In 2019, following a unanimously approved parliamentary resolution, a temporary sub-emphyteusis for the
Dragonara Casino Palace and adjacent grounds was granted in favour of Dragonara Gaming Limited by
Casma Limited (C 8930) for a period of 64 years commencing on 3 July 2019.

« In2021,Dragonara Gaming Limited successfully secured a new international tender for the Dragonara Casino
Concession, enabling the Group to continue operating the Dragonara Casino.

At the end of 2021, the Group rebranded from Pinnacle Gaming Group to ‘IZIGROUP’ and established the
Issuer as a holding and financing arm of the Group. Simultaneously with its incorporation, the Issuer acquired
all the share capital of the operating Subsidiaries of JGS Corporate Holdings Limited in exchange for the
issue of 80,000,000 ordinary shares having a nominal value of €1.00 each in favour of JGS Corporate Holdings
Limited together with a deferred consideration payable to JGS Corporate Holdings Limited of €20 million. As
at 30 June 2025, €2.6 million of the deferred consideration remains outstanding and payable by the Issuer
to JGS Corporate Holdings Limited.

National Lottery p.l.c.was also established inthe same year, forthe purpose of participating in the international
call for tender of the concession to operate the National Lottery and was ultimately successful in its bid
against local and international competition.

- In2022,the Government of Malta granted National Lottery p.l.c. a ten-year concession to operate the National
Lottery, commencing on 5 July 2022. In the same year, the Issuer raised €30 million through the issuance
of 4.25% unsecured bonds maturing in 2029 and obtained a €40 million bank loan from Bank of Valletta
p.l.c, the aggregate proceeds of which were utilised to finance the Group’s projected capital expenditure in
connection with the Dragonara Casino Concession, the National Lottery Concession, and the Group’s retail
gaming operations.

In the same year, Gaming Operations Limited amalgamated with National Lottery p.l.c. pursuant to which
National Lottery p.l.c. acquired all the assets and liabilities of Gaming Operations Limited, and the latter
company ceased to exist. Accordingly, National Lottery p.l.c. now operates both the National Lottery and the
retail gaming operations of the Group under its B2C licence.

- In 2023, IZI Interactive Limited, the iGaming subsidiary of the Group, launched www.lottery.mt, providing the
full National Lottery Games Suite online, reflecting the Group’s willingness to embrace digital innovation.

« In2024,National Lottery p.l.c. became a full member of the WLA, after having successfully completed the WLA
Level 4 Responsible Gaming Certification and Level 2 Security Control Standard Certification, highlighting
the Group’s commitment to promoting responsible gaming practices through I1SO certified operational
standards, namely ISO/IEC27001:2022.

National Lottery p.l.c. also introduced in Malta the first-ever Historical Horse Racing (HHR) service outside the
USA, creating a new source of revenue, while opening the opportunity of launching such services in larger
foreign markets.

Inthe same year,the Group established IZI International SARL in Luxembourg, with subsidiaries in Luxembourg,
Austria and Brazil to pursue select international business opportunities.

- In 2025, National Lottery p.l.c. became a full member of the United Lotteries for the Integrity of Sport (ULIS),
reinforcing the Group’s commitment to fairness, transparency and integrity in sports betting.

There are no other recent events particular to the Issuer which are, to a material extent, relevant to an evaluation
of its solvency.
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5.2. Principal Activities and Current Markets of the Issuer and the Group

The Issuer is the holding and finance vehicle of the Group. Its sole purpose is to finance the activities of its
operating Subsidiaries and associated companies.

In 2022, the Issuer successfully raised €30 million through the issuance of 4.25% unsecured bonds maturing
in 2029. The funds were raised to finance the Group’s projected capital expenditure in connection with the
Dragonara Casino Concession for the duration of the term thereof, and to part-finance the Group’s projected
capital expenditure in connection with the National Lottery Concession for the duration of the term thereof and
the Group’s retail gaming operations, for the years 2022 to 2025.

The Bond proceeds received by the Issuer by virtue of the Bond Issue pursuant to this Prospectus will be on-lent
to certain Subsidiaries within the Group. Information on the use of the Bond proceeds and on the entities which
will benefit from those proceeds by virtue of intra-group loans is set out in the Securities Note.

As a holding and finance company of the Group, the Issuer has shareholding interests in its operating
Subsidiaries and benefits from loan receivables from the said Subsidiaries. Accordingly, the Issuer is financially
and economically dependent on the financial performance of its Subsidiaries.

Although the Issuer was established on 30 December 2021, its Subsidiaries have extensive experience in the
industry. The Group is a key player in the Maltese land-based gaming sector actively operating in the two largest
market segments, lottery and casino. Within these market segments, the Group offers a wide range of products
(within the lottery segment), and sports betting and casino products (within the land-based casino segment).

National Lottery p.l.c. has been operating the National Lottery Concession since July 2022, whilst Dragonara
Gaming Limited has successfully operated the Dragonara Casino since 2010. IZI Interactive Limited, the Group’s
iGaming subsidiary, provides online access to the Group’s land-based gaming products across three domains:
www.dragonara.com, www.izibet.com and www.lottery.mt.

The Group has experienced significantgrowthinrecentyears, principally by leveraging the business opportunities
afforded to it through the National Lottery Concession and the Dragonara Casino Concession. Today, the Group
has a workforce of over 500 employees and operates from The Quad Central in Mriehel.

The total land-based gaming market in terms of GGR for 2024 is reported by the MGA at €124.6 million and has
been growing at a CAGR of 3% since 2019. The market comprises four main product segments, namely the
National Lottery, land-based casinos, commercial bingo and Controlled Gaming Premises. The National Lottery
is the largest segment in the land-based gaming industry in Malta with 50% of the total GGR, followed closely
by land-based casinos with 48% GGR. Controlled Gaming Premises and commercial bingo account for the
remaining 2% of market value.
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The chart below provides an overview of the GGR generated by the land-based gaming market in Malta in 2024.

LAND BASED GAMING GCR (2024)

€61,047,277
€36,155,638
€15,294,314
€8,409,763
. €1964,534 £€1,800904
— —
Land Based National Sports Betting Gaming Controlled Bingo
Casinos Lottery (DBGs Machines Gaming
and Instants) Premises
(Sports and
EGMs)

5.2.1. National Lottery and Retail Gaming

The National Lottery was established in 1923 and was operated by the Government of Malta until it was first
privatised in 2004. Between the years 2004 and 2022 the National Lottery concession was operated and managed
by Maltco Lotteries.

In September 2021, the Group established a fully owned subsidiary, National Lottery p.l.c., as the bidder for the
concession to manage and operate the National Lottery. National Lottery p.l.c. was declared the preferred
proponent for the grant of the National Lottery Concession in November 2021 and, on 10 March 2022, entered into
a concession agreement with the Ministry for the Economy and Industry acting also on behalf of the Government
of Malta.

National Lottery p.l.c. commenced operation of the National Lottery Games on 5 July 2022, in accordance with
the terms of the National Lottery Concession and the National Lottery Licence. The operation of the National
Lottery Games Suite under this concession will continue until 4 July 2032, during which period National Lottery
p.l.c. holds an exclusive licence to use the National Lottery Intellectual Property Rights and to operate the National
Lottery Games on an exclusive basis and the Other Games on a non-exclusive basis.

Following the merger with Gaming Operations Limited described in section 5.2, National Lottery p.l.c. offers the
games portfolio described later in this section through a network of authorised agents, own retail stores and
online.

Essentially the games portfolio offered by National Lottery p.l.c. is broadly split into two product categories,
namely National Lottery Games and Other Games which together constitute the National Lottery Games Suite.

In addition to operating the National Lottery Concession, National Lottery p.l.c.is responsible for the retail gaming
operations of the Group under its B2C licence, further to the merger between Gaming Operations Limited and
National Lottery p.l.c. As a result, the services previously provided by Gaming Operations Limited, including, but
not limited to, sports betting services, EGMs and commercial bingo, are now provided by National Lottery p.l.c. All
point of sales previously operated under the IZIBET brand have been or are in the process of being rebranded
as ‘National Lottery..

Over the years, the IZIBET brand, launched in 2015, enabled the Group to establish itself as a market leader in
sports betting and retail gaming in Malta, leveraging in the process the technology know-how it had built over the
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years.The IZIBET brand remains the official sports betting brand of the National Lottery. The Group was the first to
launch a sports betting brand (the IZIBET Brand) under which virtual sports and e-sports betting is provided from
a retail network in Malta. It also operates the first retail mobile betting application in the market called IZIAPP.
This app allows players to prepare bet slips on their mobile phones and transfer their betting preferences to a
self-service terminal in any of the stores operated by the Group, enabling customers to avoid queues and access
certain game features outside the retail environment.

National Lottery p.l.c. is also the authorised partner of the French state-owned company Pari-Mutuel-Urbain
(PMU), through which National Lottery p.l.c. provides exclusive off-track pari-mutuel and fixed-odds betting on
French and other international horse racing events.

National Lottery p.l.c. has engaged a number of reputable suppliers and contractors for the provision of,
amongst others, the core management system, the provision of core sports betting services including odds risk
management, a fully-fledged display system for video walls in shops, data services to enable efficient delivery
and streaming of content across the retail network, proprietary horse racing products from France, UK, Ireland,
South Africa and the Middle East, and a bingo management system.

5.2.11.  National Lottery Authorisations

National Lottery p.l.c. is duly authorised to operate the National Lottery Games Suite by virtue of the National
Lottery Concession and a B2C Licence bearing licence number MGA/B2C/003/2022, issued by the MGA on 5 July
2022.The licence is valid for a period of 10 years, expiring on 4 July 2032. The game types and verticals which have
been duly approved under the National Lottery Licence are set out in the table below:

Game Type Approved Vertical Approved

Type 1 Gaming Services Lotteries and Casino Type Games
Type 2 Gaming Services Fixed Odds Betting
Type 3 Gaming Services Pool Betting

5.2.1.2. National Lottery Games

The National Lottery Games comprise some of the most popular traditional draw-based games such as Lotto,
Super5and FastKeno along with variations of these games such as Super5 Plus, Supers5-4-3-2-1and Supers-4-3-2-1
Plus. National Lottery p.l.c. also offers a number of other lottery type games including bingo, virtual sports betting,
Historical Horse Racing (HHR), video lottery terminals (VLTs) and instant scratch lottery, the latter sold under the
brand name ScratchlZ.

In line with its corporate strategy, significant initiatives have been undertaken to modernize and strengthen
the games portfolio. National Lottery p.l.c. has updated its traditional lottery products, introduced new and
innovative games, and enhanced its distribution network to improve accessibility and player engagement.
These measures have supported stronger market acceptance, sustained growth, and continued alignment with
evolving consumer preferences.

5.2.1.3. Other Games

National Lottery p.l.c. also offers a wider range of products in the local market on a non-exclusive basis, including
sports betting, pool-based betting and EGMs. This market segment has benefited from the technology and
distribution improvements adopted by National Lottery p.l.c. since assuming the operation of the National Lottery.

5.2.14. Key Commitments under the National Lottery Concession Agreement

In terms of the National Lottery Concession, National Lottery p.l.c. has undertaken the necessary investments to
operate the National Lottery and provide the National Lottery Games Suite to the market. To this end, National
Lottery p.l.c. has committed to a capital expenditure of €17.5 million throughout the term of the National Lottery
Concession. The capital expenditure is to be used in connection with:

- telecommunications equipment and services;

. software and software development;
. installation of hardware;
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- other equipment;

« owhned or leased premises;

- distribution outlets for the National Lottery;
« development of intellectual property; and
. staffand agents training.

National Lottery p.l.c. has already invested €36.1 million, since taking over the operation of the National Lottery.

National Lottery p.l.c.is also required to ensure that the number of distribution outlets from which certain National
Lottery Games are sold shall not be less than 190 and not more than 240 located between Malta and Gozo.

The total consideration payable by National Lottery p.l.c. in connection with the National Lottery Concession is
just above €105 million. The amount of €44 million has been paid during the first year of operations and the
balance is payable in instalments over the concession period. As at the date of this Registration Document the
amount payable in connection with the National Lottery concession is €48.943.909 which will be financed from
cash flow generated by National Lottery p.l.c.

National Lottery p.l.c. has also undertaken to: (i) make an annual contribution in the amount of €50,000 to the
Responsible Gaming Foundation; (ii) pay an annual concession monitoring fee in the amount of €35,000 to
the Ministry for the Economy, Enterprise and Strategic Projects; and (iii) transfer 90% of the total amount of
unclaimed prizes to the Social Causes Fund and the remaining 10% to the Responsible Gaming Foundation, with
respect to all games forming part of the National Lottery Games Suite.

5.2.15. Management Strategy for the National Lottery

The Group’s strategy for the National Lottery continues to be a growth-oriented business strategy focusing
primarily on the following four key pillars:

« Introduction of new game concepts and enhancements to current products within the National Lottery
Games Suite;

- Improved distribution of products through retail and online channels;

«  Enhanced payouts to improve market liquidity and combat illegal gambling activities;

«  Full adherence to Responsible Gaming and Security Operational Standards adopted by the WLA and
European Lotteries, as a cornerstone to sustain operational trust.

The Group's strategy has driven significant market growth in terms of GGR across all product verticals. Since
assuming responsibility for the operation thereof, the Group has transformed the National Lottery business,
growing its size from €36.9 million in calendar year 2021 (being the highest-performing full year of operation
under the previous National Lottery concessionaire) to €64 million in FY2025.

5.2.2. The Dragonara Casino

Since 2010, Dragonara Gaming Limited (owned to the extent of 60% by the Issuer through Peninsula Gaming
Group Limited) has been the concessionaire of the Dragonara Casino located within the Dragonara Palace, a 19th
century palace which is considered an iconic property in Malta.

In 1964, the Dragonara Palace was leased to Kursaal Company Limited to open and operate a casino - the first
casino in Malta. The establishment of the casino at the Dragonara Palace was among the early initiatives after
Malta gained its independence and played a significant part in developing Malta’s tourism industry.

Dragonara Gaming Limited has been at the helm of the Dragonara Casino since June 2010, after having
successfully won an international competitive tender for a government concession to operate a land-based
casino in and from the Dragonara Palace. In 2019, Dragonara Gaming Limited was granted the Dragonara Palace
and adjoining grounds under title of temporary sub-emphyteusis for a period of 64 years terminating in 2083.
In 2021, Dragonara Gaming Limited retained the right to operate the Dragonara Palace as a casino after winning
another international competitive tender. This right is valid until 28 July 2033, following a two-year extension
to the original ten-year concession term granted by the Government of Malta in accordance with Article 85(1)
(c) of the Concession Contracts Regulations (Subsidiary Legislation 601.09 of the laws of Malta). The extension
was intended to partially mitigate the burden that licensed casino operators experienced during the COVID-19
pandemic during which Dragonara Casino was forced to close for certain periods. In consideration for the grant
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of the extension, Dragonara Gaming Limited shall pay €300,000 to the Government of Malta to be affected in 24
equal instalments, with the first instalment payable on 31 December 2025 and concluding on 30 November 2027.

In terms of the deed of sub-emphyteusis, Dragonara Gaming Limited is permitted to use the Dragonara Casino
exclusively as a land-based casino and, or in connection with gaming, retail, catering, entertainment, hospitality
and tourism activities.

Through the Dragonara Casino, Dragonara Gaming Limited offers customers an array of gaming products
commonly found in a land-based casino. The Dragonara Casino holds a licence to operate 375 slot machines
and 25 live gaming tables. As at the date of this Registration Document, it operates 274 slot machines and 20 live
gaming tables, including live dual-play roulette that is also available online.

Moreover, the service offered at the Dragonara Casino is complemented by several in-house facilities including
130 parking bays for use by casino patrons free of charge, several dining options and a VIP lounge.

5.2.2.1. Dragonara Casino Authorisations

Dragonara Gaming Limited is authorised to operate the Dragonara Casino by virtue of the Dragonara Casino
Concession and a B2C Licence issued by the MGA bearing licence number MGA/B2C/181/2010 which was initially
issued in 2010. Dragonara Gaming Limited’s current licence is valid until 31 July 2031. Further details on the game
types and verticals approved under said licence can be found in the table below:

Game Type Approved Vertical Approved

Type 1 Gaming Services Casino Games
Type 2 Gaming Services Fixed Odds Betting
Type 3 Gaming Services Peer-to-Peer Bingo or Games

Dragonara Gaming Limited is also authorised to operate the Dragonara Casino as a gaming premises in virtue of a
gaming premises approval licence granted by the MGA in terms of the Gaming Premises Regulations (Subsidiary
Legislation 583.07 of the laws of Malta), bearing licence number MGA/GP/153/2019. The approval is effective as of 1
August 2021 and expires on 31 July 2031.

5.2.2.2. Principal products and services supplied to Dragonara Gaming Limited

The operation of a land-based casino entails the implementation of | T. systems and operational processes that are
approved and sanctioned by the MGA. A central management system controls the interplay of systems required
for the operation of the Dragonara Casino including the systems relating to the operation of slot machines, live
tables, front desk and cash desk as well as surveillance, loyalty programmes and marketing promotions. The
central management system is a critical system for the smooth and secure operation of the Dragonara Casino.

Over the course of the 15-year period throughout which Dragonara Gaming Limited has been operating the
Dragonara Casino, Dragonara Gaming Limited availed of the services of several reputable technology partners
for the provision of slot machines and other gaming devices and systems deployed at the Dragonara Casino.

5.2.2.3. Key Commitments under the Dragonara Casino Concession

Dragonara Gaming Limited has committed to a capital expenditure of approximately €8.5 million (excluding the
applicable concession fee) throughout the term of the Dragonara Casino Concession to refurbish, upgrade
and modernise the Dragonara Casino. Since the commencement of the second concession term, Dragonara
Gaming Limited has invested €9.5 million to implement its strategic vision for the Dragonara Casino.

5.2.3. iGaming

The Group, through its subsidiary IZI Interactive Limited, also provides online gaming services through its online
portals: www.lottery.mt, www.dragonara.com and www.izibet.com with a fourth portal, www.izibingo.com,
planned for launch during 2026. Through these platforms, the Group offers its products through different
delivery channels and can target a diverse audience. The online gaming segment of the Group is primarily
focused on the local market, with 99% of its turnover having been generated from the local Maltese market in
the last financial year.
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5.2.3.1. iGaming Authorisations

IZI Interactive Limited is the operator of the Group’s online gaming operations, offering a comprehensive range
of online products. These include lottery games and online casino via www.lottery.mt; and sports betting via
www.izibet.com and online casino via www.dragonara.com. The Group plans to launch a fourth domain in 2026,
www.izibingo.com, through which it will provide online bingo and casino products, subject to the submission
and approval of an application to add an additional domain by the MGA.

IZI Interactive Limited is authorised to provide online Gaming Services pursuant to a B2C Licence, bearing
number MGA/B2C/345/2016 issued by the MGA in 2016. The current licence was issued on 1 August 2018 and
is valid until 11 May 2027. Upon expiration of this licence period, and subject to continued compliance with
regulatory requirements, IZI Interactive Limited will be eligible to apply for a renewal of the licence for a further
10-year period.

Further details on the game types and verticals approved under said licence are set out in the table below:

Game Type Approved Vertical Approved

Type 1 Gaming Services Casino Type Games

Type 2 Gaming Services Fixed Odds Betting

5.2.3.2. Principal products and services supplied to IZI Interactive Limited
The Group engages several reputable providers for the provision of the following products and services:

. Software and L.T. solutions
IZI Interactive Limited contracts the services of EveryMatrix Software Limited (C 51832) (“EveryMatrix”) for the
provision of online gaming software required by IZI Interactive Limited to enable customers to access online
gaming products.

EveryMatrix (bearing MGA licence number MGA/B2B/201/2011) has lbeen approved by the MGA to provide
IZI Interactive Limited with a host of services, including online casino games, game management, content
management system, odds risk management for sports betting, sports betting management and all
integrations to third-party systems required to complete the online product.

+  Online games
Through the platform offered by EveryMatrix, IZI Interactive Limited offers a range of games provided by
game service providers directly contracted and integrated with EveryMatrix and game service providers
directly contracted with IZI Interactive Limited.

«  Payment solutions
Payment providers enable IZ| Interactive Limited to accept payments from customers and carry out payment
transactions in what is essentially an e-commerce portfolio of services provided by the company.

5.3. Strategy and New Markets

The Group maintains a strategic focus across all its business verticals, with particular emphasis on driving
product innovation, expanding the distribution footprint, improving profit margins, and pursuing international
expansion.

From FY2026 onwards, the Group will pursue a five-pronged strategy to maximise and consolidate operations:

- continued enhancements to the current games portfolio;

- introduction of new product categories and the establishment of other Bingo & HHR facilities;
+ augmentation, expansion and sustained improvements in the retail distribution network;

- strengthening the Group’s digital reach; and

- margin improvement through further cost-optimisation measures.

As part of its broader strategy, the Group is actively pursuing international expansion, through targeted initiatives
focused on concession-based land-based casino operations and retail gaming opportunities. By leveraging its
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established relationships with industry leaders and proven operational set-up and expertise, the Group is ideally
positioned to replicate its successful business model, technology integrations and operating standards in new
jurisdictions.

5.3.1. Internationalisation Strategy Rationale

In pursuing its international expansion, the Group has developed a robust strategic rationale to evaluate the
viability of various gaming-related business opportunities. The framework, refined over the past two years,
follows a stringent industry-specific evaluation process that comprises the following elements:

- Regulatory and Licensing Frameworks
The Group mainly pursues international opportunities emerging from concession-driven initiatives that offer
clear licensing opportunities, well-defined compliance obligations, high barriers to entry and established
responsible gaming standards.

«  Market Analysis and Cultural Fit
Player behaviour, player preferences, and cultural attitudes towards gaming in target jurisdictions are
assessed as critical elements for successful market entry.

«  Partnerships and Local Alliances
The establishment of collaborations with reputable local partners, such as distributors, technology providers
and government entities, are essential considerations to facilitate market entry, mitigate risk and create value.
«  Brandtrust and expertise
While the Group’s brands are primarily recognised in the local market, its operational expertise built over
more than two decades in the gaming industry demonstrates a proven ability to build trusted brands over
time. Leveraging this expertise to launch similar products in larger jurisdictions is an essential component
in the internationalisation strategy. The ability to create strong brand equity in foreign jurisdictions is a key
element in the decision-making process.

- Financial and Tax Implications
Currency exposure, taxation, profit repatriation and financial compliance are key considerations in
establishing international ventures that are profitable and sustainable over the long term.

Once an international opportunity has been analysed against these key strategic drivers, and the assessment
proves satisfactory, the Group then evaluates the opportunity against four final criteria, namely;

«  product;

- service and technology provision;

«  value proposition; and

+  business model.

Based on this strategic rationale, the Group has identified several international business opportunities. The
proposed bond issue is aimed at capitalising the Group’s international arm, a necessary step for submitting bids
for targeted concessions predominantly in EU jurisdictions.

IZI International SARL will deploy capital into the relevant foreign subsidiaries either through equity, shareholder
loans, or a combination of both, depending on the requirements in each jurisdiction. The Issuer will serve as the
financing vehicle for all international business opportunities, with the proposed structure envisaging that the
Issuer will issue a loan directly to the respective shareholder in any international subsidiary to co-invest in the
opportunity.

<+ 6.TREND INFORMATION

6.1. Trend Information
There has been no material adverse change in the prospects of the Group since 30 June 2025, being the end of

the last financial period for which audited financial information has been published, to the date of this Registration
Document.
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There has been no significant change in the financial performance and, or financial position of the Group since
31 December 2025, being the end of the last financial period for which financial information has been published,
to the date of this Registration Document.

The Parent transferred its operating Subsidiaries to the Issuer on 30 December 2021, being the same date that
the Issuer was incorporated. The following is an overview of the most significant trends that are likely to have a
material effect on the prospects of the Group.

- Regulation
The gaming industry continues to evolve, with legislation and regulation introduced to address market
developments and strengthen player protection. Whilst increased regulatory scrutiny may encourage
greater social acceptance of an industry which, to this day, still carries connotations of addiction and
other related undesirable risks, it typically results in increased costs, licensing requirements, operational
restrictions and administrative burdens for operators.

- Technological Development and Innovation
The gamingindustryis a highly dynamicindustryandis driven by technological advancements. Developments
in product innovation (enhancing player experience) and distribution channels (improving access to
products and services) are expected to benefit the industry while ensuring that products and services are
offered in a fair, safe and transparent environment. Moreover, the convergence between product segments,
enabled through high-speed data transfer and the adoption of mobile devices as a preferred access
channel, provides a strong backdrop for continued industry growth.

6.1.1. Land-based Gaming Market Trends

The land-based gaming market in Europe has witnessed growth in terms of GGR following the challenges
experienced during the COVID-19 pandemic. The following sections provide an overview of the key market
trends shaping the Maltese land-based gaming industry and examine how these developments compare across
a wider European landscape. They explore the ongoing transformation within this industry sector that is brought
about by evolving player behaviour, technological advancements and regulatory dynamics, amongst others.
This section utilises various sources of data, including the latest reports published by the MGA, as well as the
latest report compiled by H2 Gambling Capital on behalf of the European Gambling & Betting Association (EGBA)
entitled, “European Gambling Market Report 2025”.

As reported by the MGA in its 2024 Annual Report, the gaming sector in Malta is one of the most important
economic pillars contributing just under 7% of the Gross Value Added (GVA) to the Maltese economy, while
also serving as an important source of employment, with approximately 18,000 individuals directly or indirectly
engaged in the industry, representing 6.2% of the national workforce.

The land-based gaming market in Malta in 2024, stood at €124.6 million in terms of GGR, representing a CAGR of
3% since 2019, when GGR was €107 million.® The Group enjoyed a comprehensive market share of 67.5% in 2024.
The growth rate in Malta from 2019 to 2024, outweighs the composite growth rates attained in the EU27 and
UK during the same period. The Group, as the foremost operator in land-based gaming categories has been a
strong catalyst of growth, especially in the lottery sector, which has been completely transformed since this was
taken over by National Lottery p.l.c. in July 2022.

Malta’s land-based gaming market comprises several distinct segments: the National Lottery, land-based casinos,
controlled gaming premises and commercial bingo halls. In addition, Malta hosts a significant iGaming sector
offering online gaming services.

. The National Lottery

National Lottery p.l.c. started operating the National Lottery on 5 July 2022. Under the stewardship of National
Lottery p.l.c., the lottery industry in Malta has experienced a major transformation. The strategic changes
implemented in this market segment gave rise to 75.8% growth when comparing FY2021 (the best and last
operative year of Maltco Lotteries) with FY2025 of National Lottery p.l.c. The GGR from products sold by National
Lottery p.l.c. grew from €369 million* to €64.1 million® within this timeframe, representing a CAGR of 15.2%. The

3 The figures shown are computations prepared by Management on the basis of the data available in the MGA Annual Report of 2024.
4 Audited Financial Statements — FY2021 - Maltco Lotteries Limited.
5 Audited Financial Statements - FY2025 — National Lottery p.l.c.
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lottery segment in Malta is the largest single market segment, contributing just under 50% of the total value in
terms of GGR.

The chart below compares the growth that the National Lottery market segment experienced in Malta.

LOTTERY GGR (MALTCO VS NATIONAL LOTTERY)

€64,166,877

€36,908,498

Lottery 2021 Lottery 2025

Several changes have been undertaken by National Lottery p.l.c. to fulfil its growth strategy, including the
creation of specific products to divert players from the informal to the formal market, game innovations and
enhancements, new product launches, and the upgrade and expansion of the distribution network, taking the
total number of National Lottery points of sale to 238. Moreover, several National Lottery points of sale underwent
a thorough refurbishment programme to bring them in line with the retail brand strategy of National Lottery
p.l.c. National Lottery p.l.c. also introduced the concept of a secondary distribution network through which
retail establishments whose primary activity is other than gaming, are licensed to sell a limited range of lottery
products, principally instant lottery products. In FY2025, National Lottery p.l.c. had a total of 95 secondary network
agents selling instant lottery products.

. Land-Based Casinos

The land-based casino market in Malta is highly competitive. There are three casino concessions and four
operative land-based casinos namely:

«  the Dragonara Casino (operated by Dragonara Gaming Limited);

«  the Oracle Casino located at the Double Tree Hilton Hotel in Qawra (operated by Tumas Group);

- the Portomaso Casino located in St. Julian’s (operated by Tumas Group); and

«  Casino Malta located at the Intercontinental Hotel in St. Julian’s (operated by Eden Leisure Group).
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The chart below provides an overview of the land-based casino market in Malta in terms of GGR since 2015.

CASINO INDUSTRY GGR

€65,165,235

€61,047.277
€57447964
€51,835454
€35,833,426
I I €30,151981

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

The land-based casino market in Malta has experienced growth rates in line with the overall land-based market.
The value of the land-based casino segment in 2025 was €65.1 million, up from €51.8 million in 2019, representing
a CAGR of 6.1%.° The Dragonara Casino consolidated its leadership position with an estimated market share of
40%’ (2024:40%). The land-based casino market segment contributes approximately 50% of the total land-based
share in terms of GGR.

. Controlled Gaming Premises

The significance of this category has continued to diminish with the downward trend in both the number of
operators and value in terms of GGR generated. As of July 2022, the Controlled Gaming Premises segment
experienced a significant change in overall operations. Gaming Operations Limited (the former retail operator
of the Group prior to the establishment of National Lottery p.l.c.) merged its operations and retail network
into National Lottery p.l.c. The second largest Controlled Gaming Premises operator after Gaming Operations
Limited also converted its retail network into National Lottery outlets. These two developments were the main
contributors to the downward trend of this sub-sector within the land-based gaming market.

By the end of 2024, the number of approved Controlled Gaming Premises in Malta declined from 29 to 21, with a
total of 162 licensed gaming devices (an average of 7.7 gaming devices per premises). The value in this category
continued its downward trajectory, with estimated GGR generated in 2024 of approximately €1.96 million. Visits
within this category also fell sharply to 83,243 from 118,218 a year prior. The average GGR per visit also fell from
€24.10 in 2023 to €23.60 in 2024. Since 2019, this segment has experienced a negative CAGR of 23%, with the
market value declining from €7 million in 2019, to €196 million in 2024. The Controlled Gaming Premises market
contributes a mere 2% of the entire land-based gaming market in terms of GGR.®

+  Commercial Bingo Halls

The Group, through its fully owned subsidiary National Lottery p.l.c., also operates a bingo facility. This segment is
the only segment that has lagged the other market segments in terms of recovery from the COVID-19 pandemic.

6 The figures shown are computations prepared by Management based on the data available in the MGA Monthly Statistics report
for January to December 2025 (published in February 2026), and the Annual Report for 2019 (https./www.mga.org.mt/app/uploads/
Annual-Report-2019.pdf)

7 This is calculated by taking the Gross Gaming Revenue as reported in the Management Accounts of Dragonara Gaming Limited and
dividing it by the MGA Monthly Statistics report (December 2025).

8 The figures shown are computations prepared by Management based on the data available in the MGA Annual Report of 2024.
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Since 2019 this sector has experienced a negative CAGR of 39%, with the total value in terms of GGR declining
from €2.2 million in 2019 to €1.8 million in 20247 As at the date of this Registration Document, there is another
commercial bingo hall located at Mainstreet Complex in Paola.

6.1.2. iGAMING Market Trends

iGaming comprises gaming services which are offered online. As at the end of 2024, the number of gaming
companies offering online services through a licence issued by the MGA stood at 304 (2023:305). There are 129
online B2C licensees offering Type 1 Gaming Services, 94 offering Type 2 Gaming Services, 42 offering Type 3
Gaming Services and 8 offering Type 4 Gaming Services.©

The Group operates in this market segment through its subsidiary IZI Interactive Limited, providing online casino,
online sports betting and online lottery via its three domains: lottery.mt, dragonara.com and izibet.com. This has
been an area of growth for the Group, with online casino and sports betting growing by 43% in FY2025 when
compared to FY2024, reaching a total GGR of just under €4.3 million (FY2024: €3 million)." This upward trend has
been sustained even in the first quarter of FY2026, with revenues of €1.2 million when compared to €1 million in
the same period a year prior.

6.2. Market Outlook

Inits 2024 Annual Report, the MGA portrays a positive outlook for the industry in the years to come. The increased
population and the strong tourism sector continue to provide favourable conditions for the land-based gaming
sectorto thrive. The growth across all gaming verticals and diversification of access channels attest to the positive
outlook of the industry. It is expected that the land-based gaming industry in Malta will continue to experience
growth and that this growth will continue to outpace the rate of growth of the EU27 and UK market, albeit at
a smaller differential than that experienced post-COVID. Management estimates that Malta’s composite land-
based and online gaming market will grow at a CAGR of 5.3% over the next 10 years, with online GGR comprising
revenue generated from Maltese IP addresses.

6.2.1. European Market

The European gaming market maintained its upward trajectory, with total GGR reaching €117.4 billion in 2023, and
expected to grow by 5% in 2024 to reach €123.4 billion in 2024. Land-based gaming remains the dominant market
segment, with GGR from this segment reaching €75.5 billion, equal to 61% of the total market value. Looking ahead,
Europe’s gaming market is projected to maintain steady growth, estimated to reach €149.2 billion by 2029, driven
predominantly by continued digital adoption and the full recovery of the land-based gaming segment, which in
many EU countries is yet to reach the pre-COVID thresholds. The growth trajectory assumes a stable economic
and regulatory environment while factoring in potential downturns that are likely to hit core markets over the
next 10 years. Over the shorter 5-year horizon, the European land-based®” gaming market is estimated to grow by
1.8%, while the European online gaming market is expected to grow by 6.9%" throughout the same period.

The EGBA defines the land-based gaming market slightly differently to how the MGA defines the market in Malta.
The land-based gaming market in Europe, as per the EGBA categorisation, is split into three broad categories:

«  Betting: comprising horse racing and sports events.

«  Lottery: comprising draw-based games and instant scratch cards.

- Other: comprising casinos, gaming machines outside of casinos and bingo.

In 2024, the lottery segment was the largest product segment at €309 billion. This segment is projected to grow at
1.7% annually through 2029. Gaming machines, the second largest product category at €249 billion, are expected
to grow at 1.6% annually over the same period. Sports and events betting show the strongest growth potential,
with a projected annual growth rate of 2.5% through 2029. Overall, the land-based gaming sector is forecast to
grow at 1.8% annually to reach €82.4 billion by 2029.

It is estimated that the lottery segment will continue to lead in terms of market share with 41% share in terms of

9 The figures shown are computations prepared by Management based on the data available in the MGA Annual Report of 2024.
10 MGA Annual Report of 2024.

17 The audited consolidated financial statements of the Issuer for the financial years ended 30 June 2024 and 30 June 2025.

2 European Gaming and Betting Association Report prepared by H2 Gambling Capital

13 European Gaming and Betting Association Report prepared by H2 Gambling Capital
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GGR, with gaming machines following with a 33% share of the market. Casinos, at 11%, come in third, while sports
betting enjoys a 9% share. This split in terms of GGR share is very different than that experienced in Malta, due
mainly to the definition of the product segments as well as the composition of the local market when compared
to the EU27. However, irrespective of the different categorisation, the growth prospects of the market are all
pointing in the same direction, with CAGR across the EU27 set at 1.8%

The adoption of online gaming in Europe is an important consideration for the future development of the market.
49% of all GGR is generated online, but more importantly the growth rates in this segment far outweigh those
in the land-based segment. It is expected that this segment will grow 6.9% annually, with the largest increases
coming from the online casino segment. Online casino is the largest product segment online in terms of GGR at
45%. Sports betting is the second largest contributor at 29%, while lottery ranks third at 15%.

Italy represents Europe’s largest online gaming market, followed by the UK, Germany, France and Spain. The
share of online gaming as a percentage of total gaming varies significantly across Europe and is determined in
part by different regulatory and fiscal frameworks. The adoption of online gaming is highest in Nordic countries
where frameworks have been developed to promote online gaming, albeit with the strictest adherence to
responsible gaming. Other jurisdictions have chosen to curb the growth of online gaming through advertising
bans, promotion limitations and other fiscal measures. In such jurisdictions sustaining current growth rates may
become a challenge.

Most revenue in Europe’s online gaming market comes from bets placed on mobile devices, which are expected
to generate 58% of total revenue in 2024. This trend reflects the growing customer preferences for mobile
devices and tablets.

<+ 7.FINANCIAL INFORMATION

71. Historic Financial Information

The following historic financial information of the Issuer is extracted from the audited consolidated financial
statements for the financial years ended 30 June 2023, 2024, and 2025, and the unaudited interim consolidated
financial statements for the six-month period ended 31 December 2025. The said financial statements have been
drawn up in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board and endorsed by the European Union.

The Issuer’s aforementioned financial statements, which are published on the Issuer’s website and are available
for inspection at its registered office as set out in section 14 of this Registration Document, shall be deemed to be
incorporated by reference in, and form part, of this Registration Document.

There has been no significant change in the financial or trading position of the Issuer since 30 June 2025.

7.2. Key References

The following table of cross-references provides a list of key sections of the financial statements of the Issuer
for the financial years ended 30 June 2023, 2024, and 2025, and the unaudited interim consolidated financial
statements for the six-month period ended 31 December 2025. Each page reference refers to the corresponding
page in the PDF reports found on https:/izigroup.com/investors/financial-reports.

2023 Annual 2024 Annual 2025 Annual 2026 Interim
Report Report Report Report
Income Statement 14 16 18 5
Statement of Financial Position 15-16 17-18 19-20 6-7
Statement of Cash Flows 18 20 22 9
Notes to the Financial Statements 19-56 21-57 23-66 10-13
Independent Auditor’s Report 57-63 58-65 67-75 n/a
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7.3. Key financial information
7.3.1. Statement of Comprehensive Income
The table below summarises the Issuer’s consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the last three

financial years ended 30 June 2023, 2024, and 2025, and the six-month periods ended 31 December 2024 and
2025:

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

€000 FY2023 FY2024 FY2025 FY2025 FY2026
12 months 12 months 12 months 6 months 6 months
Turnover' 660,248 796,149 919989 448168 560,879
Player winnings (587,067) (707,724) (825462) (402,341) (506,307)
Bonus costs (3,666) (1937) (815) (552) (679)
Gross gaming revenue 69,515 86,487 93,713 45,275 53,893
Other revenue 572 532 537 288 358
Total revenue 70,087 87,020 94,249 45,563 54,252
Other income 1424 791 781 324 406
Staff costs (13,995) (13,766) (13,817) (7,062) (7,341)
Gaming tax (21,655) (26,934) (28,777) (13,990) (16,431)
Other operating expenses (19981) (21,336) (20927) (9,886) 11,432)
Depreciation & amortisation (16,548) (18,365) (19,651) (9,768) (10,151)
Operating profit / (loss) (669) 7409 1,857 5,181 9,302
Impairment of goodwill (756) - - - -
Fair value gain on investment - 354 - - -
property
Finance costs (5,003) (5,166) 4,714) (2465) (2,382)
Finance income - - - - 2
Profit / (loss) before tax (6,428) 2,597 7143 2716 6922
Tax income / (expense) 1,852 (802) (2,685) (1,028) (2,627)
Profit / (loss) for the year (4,575) 1,795 4,459 1,688 4,295
Profit / (loss) for the year
attributable to:
Owners of the parent (5,362) 1,009 3,17 999 3,372
Non-controlling interest 787 787 1,287 689 923

The Group’s turnoverincreased from €660 million in FY2023 to €920 million in FY2025, resulting in a corresponding
rise in gross gaming revenue from €69.5 million in FY2023 to €93.7 million in FY2025. This positive trajectory has
continued into FY2026, with the Group generating gross gaming revenue of €539 million during the first six
months of the financial year, demonstrating sustained year-on-year growth.

This strong performance was primarily driven by improved results across all of the Group’s cash-generating
units, namely the National Lottery, Dragonara Casino and iGaming operations. The Group remains confident
in the robustness of its strategic plan, as evidenced by the record performance achieved in FY2025 and the
continued strong performance in the first six months of FY2026.

4 In FY2025, as reported in the FAS dated 17 December 2024 and the audited financial statements ending 30 June 2025, the Group
revised its reporting methodology for turnover, which is now presented as wagered turnover rather than drop. This provides a more
accurate reflection of betting activity and ensures consistency across the Group. Wagered turnover reflects the total value of all
bets placed, including re-wagers from winnings, whereas drop captures only the initial funds deposited and wagered. Comparative
turnover and player winnings have been restated accordingly, with gross gaming revenue remaining unchanged.
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Operating profit increased year-on-year in absolute terms, reflecting strong revenue growth alongside a stable
cost base, further supported by a comprehensive cost rationalisation programme implemented across the
Group. Consequently, the operating profit margin improved significantly, increasing from -1.0% in FY2023 to 8.5%
in FY2024 and further to 12.6% in FY2025. For the first half of FY2026, operating profit represents 17.1% of total
revenue, further reiterating that FY2026 is continuing to show marked improvement.
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7.3.2. Statement of financial position

The table below summarises the Issuer’s consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2023, 30 June
2024, 30 June 2025, and 31 December 2025:

Consolidated statement of financial position

€000 Jun-24 Jun-25 Dec-25
Assets

Non-current assets

Goodwill 61,596 61,596 61,596 61,596
Intangible assets 130,181 121,364 109,777 104,006
Property, plant and equipment 21,849 25775 25,873 25,537
Right-of-use asset 44,690 43,859 42,632 43,707
Investment properties 1,425 2,034 5,527 5,581
Trade and other receivables - - - 400
Other assets 2939 2,880 2,335 2,298
Deferred tax asset 1,385 1,081 376 284
Total non-current assets 264,065 258,588 248,114 243,408
Current assets

Other assets 6 - - -
Inventories 875 831 816 781
Trade and other receivables 2,51 2,580 3,343 3,851
Current tax receivable 3 3 18 8
Cash and cash equivalents 11,569 6,888 7034 17444
Total current assets 14,964 10,302 11,210 22,084
Total assets 279,029 268,890 259,325 265,492
Equity and Liabilities

Equity

Share capital 80,000 80,000 80,000 80,000
Retained earnings / (accumulated losses) (5,652) (4,643) (2,556) 816
Equity attributable to the owners of the parent 74,348 75,357 77444 80,816
Non-controlling interest 6,996 7,782 8,319 9,692
Total equity 81,344 83,139 85,764 90,508
Non-current liabilities

Bank borrowings 41131 33,664 28,196 24,713
Debt securities in issue 29,505 29,591 29677 29,720
Trade and other payables 57944 56,603 49,848 45,569
Deferred tax liability 8,321 8,819 10,813 13,320
Lease liabilities 26,810 26,992 26,577 28,035
Total non-current liabilities 163,711 155,669 145,112 141,358
Current liabilities

Bank borrowings 7,010 7485 8,218 12,265
Trade and other payables 26,020 21123 18,744 19,860
Lease liabilities 946 1,475 1,488 1,482
Current tax liability - - - 19
Total current liabilities 33,975 30,082 28,450 33,626
Total liabilities 197,686 185,751 173,561 174,984
Total equity & liabilities 279,029 268,890 259,325 265,492
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The total assets of the Group as at 31 December 2025 amounted to €265.4 million and mainly comprise:

1. Goodwill of £€61.6 million which arose from acquisition of subsidiaries;

2. Intangible assets of €104 million comprising the National Lottery concession, the Dragonara casino
concession, software and the fair value of trademarks and domains;

3. Property, plantand equipment of €25.5 million, primarily comprising the net book value of gaming equipment
used inthe National Lottery and Dragonara Casino operations,land owned by the Group, office and computer
equipment, and leasehold improvements. The leasehold improvements mainly relate to refurbishments and
enhancements carried out in retail shops operated by the National Lottery; and

4. Right of use assets of €43.7 million primarily relating to the Dragonara property sub-emphyteusis, as well as
leased gaming premises used in the National Lottery operations, office space, warehouses, motor vehicles,
and other properties leased by the Group.

The Group’s equity comprises share capital, accumulated losses, and non-controlling interest. As at 31 December
2025, the Group’s share capital amounted to €80 million, divided into 80 million ordinary shares with a nominal
value of €1 each. Movements in retained earnings during the first six months of FY2026 include profits generated
that are attributable to the parent company.

Following the Group’s return to profitability in FY2024, accumulated losses have decreased steadily on a year-
on-year basis, resulting in accumulated losses balance of €2.6 million as at 30 June 2025 and positive retained
earnings of €0.8 million as at 31 December 2025.

The Group’s liabilities, which totaled €175 million as at 31 December 2025, mainly comprise bank borrowings, the

€30 million 4.25% unsecured bonds issued in April 2022, and trade and other payables which consist primarily of
the concession fee payable in respect of the National Lottery concession as at the reporting date.
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7.3.3. Statement of cash flows

The table below summarises the Issuer’s consolidated statement of cash flows for the last three financial years
ended 30 June 2023, 2024, and 2025, and the six-month periods ended 31 December 2024 and 2025:

Consolidated statement of cash flows
FY2023 FY2024 FY2025 FY2025 FY2026

12 months 12 months 12 months 6 months 6 months

Operating activities

Profit / (loss) before tax (6,428) 2,597 7143 2,716 6922
Adjustments:
- Depreciation and amortisation 16,548 18,365 19,651 9,768 10,151
- Impairment of goodwiill 756 - - - -
- Impairment of property, plant and equipment - - 53 - -
- Gain on termination/remeasurement of lease - - (99) - -
liability
- Fair value gain on investment properties - (354) - - -
- Interest income - - - - )
- Interest expense 5,003 5,166 4714 2465 2,382
- Provision for jackpots and cash and bonus 33 44 9 (139) 128
points
22,340 23,221 24,328 12,094 12,659
Net changes in working capital:
- Changes in inventories (603) 44 15 16 35
- Changes in trade and other receivables (1,282) 3) (218) (1,067) (869)
- Changes in trade and other payables 3,159 (2409) (2,899) (2,353) 423
1,274 (2,368) (3,102) (3403) (412)
Net cash from operating activities 17,185 23,450 28,370 11,406 19,169

Investing activities

Payments to acquire intangible assets (42,372) (4,546) (9,208) (4,234) 4,271)
Payments to acquire property, plant and (13,088) (8,816) (5,224) (3,450) (2,630)
equipment

Payments to acquire investment properties (243) (255) (1,860) (216) 54)
Net cash used in investing activities (55,704) (13,617) (16,292) (7,900) (6,954)

Financing activities

Dividends paid - - (1,404) (320) (480)
Issue of shares to non-controlling interest - - 50 - 450
Net proceeds from bank loans 40917 - 2,709 1,832 4543
Repayment of bank loans (1905) (7,032) (7485) (3,689) (3998)
Repayment of lease liabilities (1,049) (1,482) (1,556) (852) (821
Repayment of amounts due to shareholder (2451) (1,557) - - -
Interest paid on lease liabilities (1,041) (1,097) (1,045) (675) (542)
Interest paid (3,254) (3,345) (3,201) (1,040) (957)
Net cash from/(used in) financing activities 31,218 (14,514) (11,932) (4,745) (1,805)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents (7,300) (4,681) 146 (1,239) 10,410
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 18,869 11,569 6,888 6,888 7034
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 11,569 6,888 7,034 5,649 17,444
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Cash flows generated from operations are driven by the Group’s operations, net of movements in working
capital. This increased from €17.2 million in FY2023 to €28.4 million in FY2025, reflecting the improvement in the
Group's operating performance.

Cash flows used in investing activities include payments to acquire intangible assets, property, plant and
equipment, and investment properties. The Group has invested significantly during its first year of operations
in order to enhance its revenue generation capabilities. In FY2023, the Group paid €42 million in respect of the
National Lottery concession, including an upfront payment of €40 million to the Government of Malta. These
payments are disclosed as payments to acquire intangible assets, with the remaining consideration payable
over the concession period.

Cash flows from/(used in) financing activities primarily comprise movement in bank borrowings, payment of
lease liabilities, repayments to shareholders in respect of properties transferred to the Group, and interest paid
on borrowings. In FY2022, the Group obtained a bank loan of €41 million to pay the upfront contribution for the
National Lottery concession. In FY2025, the Group secured an additional bank facility of €3 million to refurbish
a new Bingo facility and other National Lottery points of sale, of which €2.7 million was drawn during FY2025. All
bank borrowings are being repaid in accordance with their respective letters of sanction.

As at 31 December 2025, during the first six months of FY2026, the Group reported a cash balance of €17.4 million.
Cash reserves continued to strengthen primarily due to the ongoing improvement in operations, resulting in
increased cash generated from operating activities, as well as the new loan facilities obtained during the current
financial period. The cash balance as at 31 December 2025 includes €4 million injected as share capital into one
ofthe Group’s international subsidiaries. This amount represents share capital invested but not yet utilised by the
subsidiary as at that date.

<+ 8.LEGAL AND ARBITRATION PROCEEDINGS

There have been no governmental, legal or arbitration proceedings (including any such proceedings which are
pending or threatened or of which the Issuer is aware) during the period, covering 12 months prior to the date
of the Prospectus which may have, or have had in the recent past, significant effects on the Group’s financial
position or profitability.

<+ 9. ADMINISTRATIVE, MANAGEMENT AND
SUPERVISORY BODIES

9.1. The Board of Directors of the Issuer

The Issuer’s governance principally lies in its Board of Directors, responsible for the general governance of the
Issuer and to set its strategic aims, for its proper administration and management and for the general supervision
of its affairs. Its responsibilities include the oversight of the Issuer’s internal control procedures and financial
performance, and the review of its business risks, thus ensuring such risks are adequately identified, evaluated,
mitigated and managed, whilst opportunities are maximised and pursued appropriately.

The Memorandum provides that the Board of Directors shall be composed of a minimum of two and a maximum
of seven directors.

As at the date of this Registration Document, the Board of Directors consists of six Directors who are entrusted
with the overall direction, administration and management of the Group. The Board of Directors currently
consists of three executive Directors and three non-executive Directors (all of whom are independent directors
for the purpose of the Capital Markets Rules).

Meetings of the Board of Directors are held at the registered office of the Issuer — The Quad Central, Q3 Level 11,
Trig I-Esportaturi, Zone 1, Central Business District, Birkirkara CBD 1040, Malta.
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9.1.1. Executive directors

The executive Directors of the Issuer form part of the Issuer’s executive team, entrusted with the day-to-day
management ofthe Group.The individuals occupying such office are also directors or officers of other companies
within the Group. The executive Directors are supported in this role by several consultants and key management,
and benefit from the know-how gained by members and officers of the Group. The executive Directors of the
Issuer are Mr Johann Schembri, Mr Franco De Gabriele and Dr Christian Gernert.

9.1.2. Non-executive directors

The non-executive Directors’ main functions are to monitor the operations and performance of the executive
Directors, as well as to review any proposals tabled by the executive Directors and the management team of the
Group, bringing to the Board the added value of independent judgment and experience across various industries
and market sectors, including prior experience with listed entities and multinational groups of companies.

As at the date of this Registration Document, the non-executive Directors ofthe Issuer are Ms Jacqueline Camilleri,
Prof Stephanie Fabri and Dr Otto Karasek.

9.1.3. Curriculum Vitae of the Directors
Christian Gernert (Executive Director and Chairman)

Dr Christian Gernert is the Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Issuer. Dr Gernert is a lawyer by profession
having graduated from the University of Vienna, Austria with a PhD in Law. He is an accomplished executive
with in-depth knowledge of the gaming legislation in Canada, the European Union, Liechtenstein, Switzerland,
South Africa, the United Kingdom and the United States of America, and has over 35 years of experience in the
international gaming and sports betting industry.

Dr Gernert has held management positions with Casinos Austria AG (08668723) and Century Casinos Inc. (SEC
CIK#0000911147). As at the date hereof, Dr Gernert is the owner and chief executive officer of Codego GmbH (UID:
ATG57558413), a business and gaming consultancy service provider, and has experience in providing consultancy
services to various gaming companies, including, Novomatic Gaming industries GmbH (FN69548b), bwin.gr
Limited (C 57513) and Speilbank Berlin (Germany) (HRA16057B). Dr Gernert is also the founder and member of the
board of directors of PG Enterprise AG (Austria) (FN424384) and a member of the supervisory board of Cara AG
(Liechtenstein) (1397), the latter being involved in the business support services industry.

Dr Gernert has occupied various other positions within gaming companies and as a result has acquired
experience in the assessment, development, creation and operation of casinos. Dr Gernert has also been
involved in the drafting of the Austrian Gaming Act, 2010 having advised the Austrian Government with respect to
the Gaming Act’s alignment with EU law requirements.

Johann Schembri (Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer)

MrJohann Schembriis a seasoned expert in the gaming industry, with over 25 years of experience across various
market segments including lotteries, electronic gaming machines, sports betting, bingo operations, casinos, and
gaming technology.

Mr Schembri has been the visionary force behind the Group’s success and remains the foundation upon which
the Group's strategy is built. He has established several consortia specifically created to operate and manage
Malta’'s most significant gaming assets.

Mr Schembri’s milestone achievements include the establishment of the first network of Controlled Gaming
Premises in 2012, representing the largest and most valuable network of privately owned gaming properties in
Malta, and the successful award of the Dragonara Casino concessions in 2010 and 2021, as well as the award of
the National Lottery Concession in 2022.

Franco De Gabriele (Executive Director and Chief Commercial Officer)

Mr Franco De Gabriele is the Chief Commercial Officer of the Issuer and serves as a member of the Board of
Directors. Mr De Gabriele holds an MBA from SDA Luigi Bocconi in Milan and a Bachelor’s Degree in Economics
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from the University of Malta, and completed his MBA studies with a specialisation course at the Leonard Stern
Business School within the New York University (NYU).

Mr De Gabriele joined the Group in November 2014. He oversees the revenue generation activities across all
Group companies, including lottery, casino and sports betting product verticals, and leads the Group’s growth
opportunities to extend its leadership position within the local market whilst establishing leads for international
market expansion. He also manages the marketing communications division of the Group to ensure an effective
communications strategy across the various verticals in operation.

In his previous roles, Mr De Gabriele worked for top telecom companies in Malta such as Melita Cable Holdings
Limited (C 12707) and GO p.l.c. (C 22334) and was also involved in a number of start-up operations within the
sector. Mr De Gabriele has extensive experience in business development, marketing operations, and bringing
new products and services to market both locally and internationally within the telecoms, media and gaming
industry.

Stephanie Fabri (Independent Non-Executive Director)

Prof Stephanie Fabri serves as an independent non-executive Director and a member of the Audit Committee of
the Issuer. She holds a PhD in Management and Economics from Warwick Business School, University of Warwick,
UK in 2018 and holds an MSc in Public Sector Economics from the University of York and a Bachelor’s Degree
in Economics from the University of Malta. Prof Fabri is an economist and lecturer at the University of Malta,
specialising in strategic management and public policy.

Throughout her career, Prof Fabri has been involved in economic consultancy work for a variety of projects,
both of a private and public nature, and has provided assistance in government policy and project monitoring
programmes. Having worked in both the private and public sectors, she brings a wealth of knowledge and
experience in applying economics to firms, consumers and communities.

Prof Fabri holds various board positions, contributing to the respective boards primarily from an economic
perspective. She serves as a non-executive director on the board of Malta Dairy Products Limited (C 7833), the
Malta Stock Exchange, Epic Communications Limited, the Environmental and Resources Authority, and the Malta
Fiscal Advisory Council. In 2020, the Ministry for the Environment, Climate Change and Planning appointed Prof
Fabri as chairperson of the Intelligent Planning Consultative Forum. Previously, until 2013, she sat as a director of
the Communications Appeals Board at the Ministry of Infrastructure, Transport and Capital Projects.

Otto Karasek (Independent Non-Executive Director)

Dr Otto Karasek serves as an independent non-executive Director and a member of the Audit Committee of the
Issuer. Dr Karasek holds a Masters degree in Business Administration from the Vienna University of Economics
and Business. He has extensive experience in the banking sector spanning over four decades.

Dr Karasek currently serves as a non-executive board member of Merkanti Bank Limited (C 31608), where he
is also chairman of the remuneration and nomination committee and a member of the risk committee. He
previously served as Chief Executive Officer of Merkanti Bank Limited, and prior to that BAWAG Malta Bank Ltd,
and subsequently as executive director and chairman of the Business Committee. In his executive roles, he held
a range of responsibilities including membership of personnel, remuneration and nomination committee and
the credit committee, and was responsible for the operation and business of the BAWAG Group in Malta and the
implementation of its business strategy.

From September 2018 to May 2020, Dr Karasek served as chairman of the supervisory board and of the nomination
and remuneration committee of Start Bausparkasse in Hamburg.

Priorto 2003, Dr Karasek filled various roles at PSK Vienna and BAWAG PSK Vienna for over twenty years, including
division head for risk control, division head market risk controlling, head treasury control and asset liability
management of PSK Group, and money market trader and head of Public Credit.

Jacqueline Camilleri (Independent Non-Executive Director)

Ms Jacqueline Camilleri serves as an independent non-executive Director and the Chairperson of the Audit
Committee of the Issuer. She holds a Master Degree in Business Administration after having obtained a B.A.
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(Hons.) degree in Accountancy from the University of Malta, and is a Fellow Member of the Malta Institute of
Accountants. As a certified public accountant, she holds director and audit committee positions across several
publicly listed companies, whilst also provides business advisory services with a particular focus on start-ups
and businesses undergoing restructuring.

Ms Camilleri’s early career spanned from 1990 and 1998 within the AX Holdings group of companies, where she
held various senior positions, including Financial Controller of AX Construction Limited (C 17438) and Finance and
Administration Manager of the Capua Palace Hospital. In 1998, she joined the Foundation for Medical Services
(FMS) as one of the team members responsible for the opening of Mater Dei Hospital. She further expanded her
experience internationally by working in the United Kingdom, serving as Directorate Management Accountant at
the Stoke Mandeville Hospital.

Throughout her career, Ms Camilleri has developed extensive consultancy experience across both the private
and national health sector. Her notable roles include serving as head of the Financial Monitoring and Control
Unit (FMCU) within the Ministry for Health, the Elderly and Community Care, and working privatisation processes,
strategic reviews and business evaluations as manager at Malta Investment Management Company Limited
(MIMCOL) (C 9588). In 2010, Ms Camilleri returned to the Ministry for Health, the Elderly and Community Care as
Director General for Finance and Administration. Between 2008 and 2013, she also served as vice chairperson of
the Malta International Airport p.l.c. (C 12663) and lectured at the Institute of Healthcare (IHC) at the University of
Malta between 2008 and 2011.

In recent years, Ms Camilleri was appointed as Chief Executive Officer at Hilltop Gardens Retirement Village
Limited (C 65735), a subsidiary of AX Holdings group of companies, managing the Hilltop Gardens Retirement
Village. In September 2017, she took on an advisory position, designing and establishing the Golden Care home,
subsequently becoming the Chief Executive Officer at Golden Care Limited (C 89549). Between 2017 and 2020,
Ms Camilleri also served as Chief Financial Officer in an advisory capacity within the Bonnici group of companies.
In November 2023, Ms Camilleri spearheaded the design, build and operate project which lead to the opening
of Porziuncola Care Home. She currently serves as a non-executive director on a number of boards, where she
also chairs their audit committees.

9.2. Senior Management and Organisational Structure

In the day-to-day operations of the Group, the executive Directors are supported by senior management. Senior
management are employed by IZI Group Services Limited providing senior management services to the Issuer
through a senior management services agreement. The senior management of the Issuer comprises:

- Johann Schembri (Chief Executive Officer)

- Franco De Gabriele (Chief Commercial Officer)

«  Christian Gernert (Chief Operating Officer)

- Chris Fenech (Chief Financial Officer)

- Albert Muscat (Chief Technology Officer)

- Duncan Borg Myatt (Chief Corporate Services Officer)

- Gabriel Sultana (Chief Digital Officer)

+  Andreas Scherrer (General Manager National Lottery p.l.c.)

+  Kevin Reich (General Manager Dragonara Casino)

«  Cristian Rachieru (Group Head of Product)

«  Maria Barbara (Group Head - Risk, Compliance & Legal AML)
. Mark Geoffrey Muscat (Group Architect)

- Erika Cavalotti (Group Anti-Money Laundering Officer)

+  Veronika Kroluva (Group Administration and Contolling Manager)
«  Clint Meylaq (Group Head of Procurement)

«  Daniel Camilleri (Group Head Engineer)

The curriculum vitae for Johann Schembri, Franco De Gabriele and Christian Gernert may be found in section
9.1.3 above. The management expertise and experience of each of the memlbers of senior management is set out
below:

Mr Chris Fenech is a qualified accountant and auditor with extensive experience in finance, strategy, and

corporate leadership. He began his career in 2012 after graduating with a Bachelor of Accountancy (Hons.) from
the University of Malta.
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Mr Fenech started his professional journey at PwC Malta, where he served as an audit supervisor, gaining a solid
grounding in financial reporting, controls, and regulatory compliance.

In April 2016, he joined Hili Ventures as finance manager, later advancing to director of finance at 1923 Investments,
the group’s investment arm. His tenure at Hili Ventures provided him with valuable exposure to international
operations and investment management.

In August 2019, Mr Fenech was appointed Chief Financial Officer at Harvest Technology p.l.c.,a company listed on
the Mallta Stock Exchange, where he played a central role in defining and executing the group’s financial strategy.
He also served as director across several of Harvest’s subsidiaries and, for a period, as Interim CEQ, leading the
company through a key transition phase.

In February 2024, Mr Fenech joined the Group as Group Chief Financial Officer, where he continues to drive the
group’s financial strategy and support its growth initiatives both locally and internationally.

Committed to continuous learning, Mr Fenech completed his MBA at Henley Business School in April 2023. Beyond
his professional work, Mr Fenech is actively involved in the Maltese accounting community. Since January 2024,
he has served as a Committee Member of the Young Members Focus Group at the Malta Institute of Accountants,
contributing to the development of emerging professionals in the field.

Albert Muscat is ChiefTechnology Officer ofthe Group, a position he has held since July 2020. He is an experienced
| T. professional with over 35 years of experience having performed a variety of duties in multiple roles held within
high profile companies such as Megabyte Limited (C 4657) and Maltco Lotteries Limited before joining the Group
in 2011.

In his current capacity, he is focused on transforming the Group into a technology-driven entity operating in the
gaming sector, with a key strategic objective of bridging the gap between land-based and online operations.
This includes the successful execution and operation of the National Lottery games portfolio after leading the
technology and network design for the successful lottery bid. He is accountable for safeguarding company
data through robust security frameworks and ensuring full compliance and certification readiness for ISO 27001,
AML/CFT directives, MGA standards, and broader EU regulatory requirements. He plans, directs, coordinates and
integrates all technical aspects of the companies at group level, ensuring smooth running of all systems whilst
keeping abreast with new technologies to maintain the group’s competitive advantage.

Mr Muscat holds a BSc in Computing and Information Systems with first class honours from Goldsmiths,
University of London, and has completed substantial coursework towards a Master’s in Artificial Intelligence from
the University of Mallta, giving him advanced knowledge in Al principles and applications.

DrDuncan Borg Myattis a practising lawyerwith over 21years’ experience. He currently serves as Chief Corporate
Services Officer within the Group, a position he has held since June 2023, where he is responsible mainly for the
Human Resources Department and the implementation of executive decisions. He has also been tasked with
company secretarial responsibilities for eight different companies forming the Group.

Prior to joining the Group, Dr Borg Myatt served as Director of Legal, Human Resources, Insurance, Health &
Safety and Training at Malta Freeport Terminals Limited from March 2009 to May 2023. In this position, he became
responsible for human resources policies and recruitment as well as for all Industrial Relations dealing with three
major Unions and finalising collective agreements for a workforce of around 1,600 employees. From September
2008 to March 2009, he served as Company Secretary, Legal & Insurance Manager at Malta Freeport Terminals
Limited. From March 2007 to September 2008, he held the position of Board Secretary and Legal Adviser at
the Malta Transport Authority. From March 2003 to 2007, Dr Borg Myatt worked as a lawyer in private practice,
handling civil litigation and providing legal advice to local companies and other entities.

Dr Borg Myatt holds a Doctor of Laws (LL.D.) from the University of Malta, obtained in 2002.

Mr Gabriel Sultana joined the Group in December 2025 as Chief Digital Officer, with responsibility for shaping and
executing the Group’s end-to-end digital and technology strategy at enterprise level. Mr Sultana contributes to
technology investment decisions, ensuring alignment with business growth objectives, a calibrated risk appetite,
regulatory obligations, and long-term operational resilience. In this role, he provides strategic oversight across
enterprise IT, software and product engineering, cybersecurity, data governance, and digital transformation
initiatives, positioning technology as a governed portfolio that both enables growth and protects enterprise
value.
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Prior to joining the Group, Mr Sultana held senior leadership roles within product- and service-centric
organisations operating across the Payments, FinTech, Performance Marketing, and Telematics sectors. With
over 25 years of experience in the IT industry, his recent appointments include Chief Technology Officer and
Director at Apcopay Limited (C 29099), part of the Harvest Group (Harvest Technology p.l.c., C 63276), and Chief
Technology Officer at HandsOn Systems Limited (C 50462).

Mr Sultana holds an MSc in IT and Management from Sheffield Hallam University and a range of industry
certifications covering executive leadership, enterprise architecture, and technology governance.

Mr Andreas Scherrer is the General Manager of National Lottery p.l.c, overseeing the strategic and operational
management of Malta’s national lottery operations. He is responsible for ensuring efficiency, integrity, and
regulatory compliance across all business units, while aligning operations with the Group's overall strategic
objectives.

Prior to this role, Mr Scherrer served as General Manager of Dragonara Casino, having joined Dragonara Gaming
Ltd in September 2023 as Operations Manager.

Before moving to Malta, he held several senior management positions within two Admiral Casinos in Liechtenstein,
where he served as Head of Operations, Marketing & AML Officer. Earlier in his career, he worked as Casino
Manager at Paradise Casino Admiral a.s. in the Czech Republic.

Active in the European gaming industry since 2013, Mr Scherrer brings extensive expertise in operations
management, compliance, marketing, and leadership. He holds a postgraduate degree in Marketing and Sales
Management from the Vienna University of Economics and Business (WU Executive Academy) and is fluent in
German and English.

Mr Kevin Reich joined Dragonara Gaming Ltd as Gaming Manager in February 2024. He was subsequently
seconded to National Lottery p.l.c., where he managed the opening of the company’s first and largest National
Lottery outlet featuring Historical Horse Racing (HHR) machines. Following the successful launch of this flagship
project, he was appointed General Manager of Dragonara Casino in April 2025.

With over 10 years of experience in the land-based gaming industry, Mr Reich began his career in 2015 with
Casinos Austria AG as a dealer and progressively advanced through various managerial roles in Liechtenstein
and Malta. He has developed extensive expertise in gaming operations, compliance, and player experience, with
a strong focus on operational efficiency and customer service excellence.

In his current position, Mr Reich is responsible for the overall management and strategic development of the
Dragonara Casino. He completed his studies at a Hotel Management School in Austria.

Mr Cristian Rachieru joined the Group in June 2020 and forms an integral part of its management team. Mr
Rachieru’s primary responsibility is to oversee Digital Products and Product Development across the Group’s
online operations. He plays a key role in defining the Group’s digital product strategy, brand identity positioning,
and the optimisation of customer-facing platforms.

In his previous roles, Mr Rachieru worked within the iGaming industry for over a decade, where he led product
design, user experience, and digital transformation initiatives for several online brands including Betsson Group,
SlickExperience and PlaylogiQ International. He has extensive experience in developing and implementing
enterprise-level Design Systems and product workflows, enabling organisations to deliver scalable digital
products efficiently and cost-effectively. Mr Rachieru has a strong track record in leading cross-functional teams,
launching new digital products to market, and enhancing user engagement and long-term value. Mr Rachieru’s
expertise lies in strategic product development, performance optimisation, and delivering customer-centric
digital experiences that support sustainable business growth.

Dr Maria Barbara is an accomplished legal and compliance professional with extensive experience inthe gaming
sector and regulatory compliance. She currently serves as the Group Head of Legal & Compliance, a position she
has held since January 2022, and is responsible for ensuring robust frameworks that safeguard organisational
integrity and meet evolving regulatory standards across the licensed companies and the other subsidiaries
within the Group.

She leads regulatory strategy, governance, and risk management initiatives, whilst ensuring adherence to best
industry practices. Dr Barbara’s career spans senior roles including Legal & Regulatory Manager and Money
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Laundering Reporting Officer (MLRO) at Maltco Lotteries Limited, as well as Compliance Officer and Company
Secretary at NBG Bank Malta Ltd.

Dr Barbara holds a Doctor of Laws (LL.D.) from the University of Malta along with a warrant to exercise the
profession of an advocate in Malta. She combines legal acumen with operational insight and can provide
strategic legal advice across multiple areas at law, including gaming, contract, AML/CFT, data protection (GDPR),
intellectual property, and regulatory compliance, supporting business decisions with a strong legal foundation.

Perit Mark Geoffrey Muscat joined the Group in December 2022 and forms an integral part of its management
team. Mark’s primary responsibility is to oversee the design and execution of new outlets and other construction
projects within the Group. He has been working with various specialised consultants, suppliers and contractors
within the industry during his time at the company.

In his previous roles, Perit Muscat worked for local architecture firms Paul Camilleri & Associates and Forward
Architects, after which he worked as an in-house architect at Allelon Ltd. (C 64420) converting historic, derelict
buildings into premium hotels in Valletta. Perit Muscat has extensive experience in rehabilitating buildings with a
particular interest in interiors, whilst working within the timeframes of commercial requirements.

Perit Muscat holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Architecture and Civil Engineering from the University of Malta. He
further studied architectural photography at the Politecnico Di Milano under the tutorship of Professor Marco
Introini and obtained his Master’s Degree at the Bartlett School of Architecture, University College London. He
is also a warranted architect and a visiting senior lecturer at the Faculty for the Built Environment, University of
Malta.

Ms Erika Cavallotti is an experienced compliance professional with over 20 years in the gaming industry. She
joined the Group in 2003 and currently serves as the Group MLRO, a position she has held since February 2023.
She plays a key role in the Group’s compliance and risk management framework, with primary responsibility for
overseeing anti-money laundering (AML) and counter-terrorist financing (CTF) policies and controls across the
organisation.

Prior to expanding her expertise at group level with the Group, Ms Cavallotti held managerial roles at Dragonara
Gaming Ltd (C 49848) and later National Lottery p.l.c. (C 100229), where she was instrumental in developing and
enhancing internal policies and controls, in line with regulatory obligations. Her career has been marked by
a strong focus on implementing robust AML controls, liaising with regulatory bodies, and driving a culture of
compliance within a multifaceted operational structure.

Ms Cavallotti holds a Certification in Anti Money Laundering from the International Compliance Association (ICA)
and is a licensed MLRO by the MGA.

Ms Veronika Krulova is the Administration and Controlling Manager at IZI Group Services Ltd in Malta, supporting
the Group’s operational entities including National Lottery p.l.c.and Dragonara Gaming Ltd. In her current role, she
oversees administrative coordination, staff rostering, and cost control, and manages communication between
operational and support departments. She is also responsible for reporting, staffing analysis, and the monitoring
of physical cashflow processes across multiple business units.

Before joining the Group, Ms Krulova held several management positions within the Admiral Casinos in
Liechtenstein, including Duty Manager and Responsible Gaming Officer, where she was responsible for daily
operations, quality management, and the implementation of responsible gaming measures.

She holds a Master’s degree in Social Work and a Bachelor’s degree in Social Pedagogy from Masaryk University
in Brno and brings over a decade of experience in operational management, administration, and compliance in
the European gaming and service industries.

Mr Clint Meylaq joined the Group in January 2022 following the takeover of the national lottery. Clint has extensive
experience in boththe gaming and hospitality sectors having held various finance and procurement roles overthe
years, supporting operational, budgeting and supply chain function. He is the Head of Procurement at the Group
having been entrusted with the establishment and development of a central procurement and administrative
framework for the Group. Within the Group, he focuses on procurement governance and strategic sourcing.
His financial background as a warranted accountant helps strengthen the controls necessary for the Group to
operate in a cost-effective manner while delivering intended margins across operations.
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Ing Daniel Camilleri joined National Lottery p.l.c. in April 2023 as the Group Engineer. Ing Camilleri’s primary
responsibility is to design and implement engineering projects across the Group as well as the facilities
management of the company operated sites. His technical experience varies widely but current professional
interests focus on Building Services design for Energy Efficiency and Maintainability.

In his previous roles, Ing Camilleri worked for QPM Ltd, a leading design consultancy firm as Head of Building
Services to later join one of Malta’s leading M&E contractors, Electrofix as Head of Engineering. Some of the
projects Ing Camilleri has worked on included overseeing the design of the Triton’s Fountain in Floriana, the Malta
International Airport departure lounge and Park East Car Park amongst others.

Ing Camilleri graduated from the University of Malta in Electrical Engineering in 1998 and then obtained an MSc.
from Brunel University in Data Communications in 2005. He is a member of CIBSE and IET as well as the Malta
Chamber of Engineers.

9.3. Potential Conflicts of Interest

Save as stated below, as at the date of this Registration Document, the Directors and the members of management
of the Group are not aware of any potential conflicts of interest which could relate to their roles within the Issuer:

a. Mr Johann Schembri is the sole shareholder of JGS Corporate Holdings Limited and therefore holds
beneficial ownership interests in both the Issuer and all its Subsidiaries. Mr Schembri is a memlber of the
board of directors of the Issuer and all other Subsidiaries, and is also the Chief Executive Officer of the Group;

b. Dr Christian Gernet is the sole shareholder of Panther Gaming Limited (C 11275) (a shareholder of IZI Group
Limited) and therefore holds beneficial ownership interests in both the Issuer and all its Subsidiaries. Mr
Gernetis also a member ofthe board of directors ofthe Issuer and senior management, and is also a member
of other group companies forming part of the Group;

c. Mr Franco De Gabriele is a member of the board of directors of the Issuer and senior management, and is
also a member of other group companies forming part of the Group; and

d. Prof Stephanie Fabri is a board member of the Malta Stock Exchange, and accordingly conflicts may arise
since the Bonds are expected to be admitted to the Official List of the Malta Stock Exchange.

In view of the above, there is a potential conflict of interest between the aforementioned Directors’ duties (as
Directors) and their interests in and, or duties to various Subsidiaries.

The Audit Committee of the Issuer has the task of ensuring that any potential conflicts of interest that might
arise pursuant to these different roles held by the Directors are handled in the best interest of the Issuer and
according to law. The fact that the Audit Committee is constituted in its entirety by independent, non-executive
Directors provides an effective measure to ensure that related party transactions (that will be vetted by the Audit
Committee) have been entered into on an arms-length basis. Potential conflicts of interest situations regarding
Board members are specifically regulated by the Act and by Article 66 of the Articles of Association, pursuant to
which a Director is required to declare his interest in and shall be precluded from voting on any such contract,
arrangement, transaction or proposal that is being discussed by the Board.

9.4. The Audit Committee

The Audit Committee’s primary objective is to assist the Board of Directors in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities
over the financial reporting processes, financial policies and internal control structure. The Audit Committee
oversees the conduct of the internal and external audit and acts to facilitate commmunication between the Board,
management and the external auditors. The Audit Committee reports directly to the Board and the external
auditors are invited to attend the Audit Committee meetings.

The Board has set formal terms of establishment and the terms of reference of the Audit Committee which set
out its composition, role and function, the parameters of its remit, as well as the basis for the processes that it is
required to comply with.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee include the committe€e’s roles and functions relating to:

a. monitoring the financial reporting processes, financial policies and internal control structures;

maintaining communications on such matters between the Board, management and the external auditors;

c. preserving the Issuer’s assets by assessing the Issuer’s risk environment and determining how to deal with
those risks:; and

o
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d. supporting the Board in its responsibilities in dealing with issues of risk, control and governance, and
associated assurance of the Issuer.

In addition, the Audit Committee has the role and function of:

a. evaluating any proposed transaction to be entered into by the Issuer and a related party to ensure that
the execution of any such transaction is at arm’s length, on a commercial basis and ultimately in the best
interests of the Issuer, as well as ensuring adherence with the requirements of the Capital Markets Rules
relating to related party transactions, including any public disclosure requirements and, or shareholder
approval requirements;

b. assessing any potential conflicts of interest between the duties of the Directors and their respective private
interests or duties unrelated to the Issuer;

c. monitoring the cash ratio (cash and cash equivalents over current liabilities) of the Group with a view
to determining whether it remains above 0.4 throughout the term of the Bond Issue (the “Cash Ratio
Threshold”)®. The Audit Committee shall monitor the adherence by the Group with the abovementioned
Cash Ratio Threshold on an annual basis at a designated meeting of the Audit Committee. The corporate
governance statement included within the annual financial reports to be published by the Issuer during the
term of the Bond Issue shall include a statement on the Group’s adherence or otherwise to the Cash Ratio
Threshold in the respective financial year. In the event that the Audit Committee determines that the Issuer
failed to adhere to the Cash Ratio Threshold in one financial year, in addition to subsequently reporting same
within the annual report, the Issuer shall duly notify the MFSA and submit thereto a remediation plan setting
out the corrective measures and timeline expected for restoring compliance with the Cash Ratio Threshold.
In the event that the Audit Committee determines that the Issuer failed to adhere to the Cash Ratio Threshold
for two consecutive years, the Issuer shall within three months from the date of such determination procure,
and thereafter maintain, a bank guarantee in an amount equal to one year’s interest on the amount of
outstanding Bonds (the “Ratio-Specific Guarantee”), until such time as the Issuer restores compliance with
the Cash Ratio Threshold. Should the Issuer fail to procure the Ratio-Specific Guarantee as aforesaid, the
Issuer shall call a meeting of Bondholders in accordance with section 5.11 of the Securities Note, wherein
Bondholders shall be given the option to either (a) accept a remediation plan setting out the corrective
measures and timeline expected for restoring compliance with the Cash Ratio Threshold, the details of
which would be communicated to Bondholders in the notice convening the meeting; or (b) call an event of
default in terms of section 5.10 of the Securities Note.

The Audit Committee is made up entirely of non-executive Directors, all of whom are independent. Audit
Committee members are appointed for periods of one year each, renewable for further periods of one year
each, unless their appointment is terminated earlier by the Board, or unless they are removed or resign from
their position as director of the Issuer earlier.

The Audit Committee is composed of Ms Jacqueline Camillieri (independent non-executive director), Prof
Stephanie Fabri(independent non-executive director) and Dr Otto Karasek (independent non-executive director).
Ms Jacqueline Camilleri is considered by the Board to be competent in accounting and, or auditing in terms
of the Capital Markets Rules. The Chairman of the Audit Committee, appointed by the Board, is entrusted with
reporting to the Board on the workings and findings of the Audit Committee. Ms Jacqueline Camilleri occupies
the post of Chairperson of the Audit Committee.

9.5. Compliance with Corporate Governance

In accordance with the terms of the Capital Markets Rules, the Issuer is required to comply with the provisions
of the Code of Principles of Good Corporate Governance contained in Appendix 5.1 to Chapter 5 of the Capital
Markets Rules (the “Code”). The Issuer declares its full support of the Code and undertakes to fully comply with
the Code to the extent that this is considered complementary to the size, nature and operations of the Issuer.

The Issuer supports the Code and is confident that the application thereof shall result in positive effects accruing
to the Issuer, including its relations with the market at large, employees, key suppliers and customers, and other
strategic stakeholders of the Group.

15 Forthe purposes of calculating the Cash Ratio Threshold, “‘cash and cash equivalents”shall include cash in hand and balances held in
current or call accounts, and any short-term, liquid instruments. This clarification reflects the Group’s treasury management strategy,
whereby surplus cash may be temporarily placed in secure interest-bearing deposits or similar treasury instruments.
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Going forward, in view of the reporting structure adopted by the Code, the Issuer shall, on an annual basis in its
annual report, explain the level of the Issuer’s compliance with the principles of the Code, in line with the “comply
or explain” philosophy of the Code, explaining the reasons for non-compliance, if any.

As at the date of this Registration Document, the Board of Directors considers the Issuerto be in compliance with
the Code, save for the following exceptions:

Principle 4 (The Responsibilities of the Board)

The Board has not formally developed a succession policy for the future composition of the Board as
recommended by Code provision 4.2.7. In practice, however, the Board of Directors is actively engaged in
succession planning and involved in ensuring that appropriate schemesto recruit, retain and motivate employees
and senior management are in place.

Principle 7 (Evaluation of the Board’s Performance)

Under the present circumstances, the Board of Directors does not consider it necessary to appoint a committee
to carry out a performance evaluation of its role, as the board’s performance is evaluated on an ongoing basis
by, and is subject to the constant scrutiny of, the Board itself, the Issuer’s shareholders, the market and the rules
by which the Issuer is regulated as a listed company.

Principle 8 (Committees)

Under the present circumstances, the Board of Directors considers that the size and operations of the Issuer
do not warrant the setting up of a remuneration and nominations committee as decisions on these matters are
taken at shareholder level.

The Board of Directors has not appointed a remuneration committee in line with Code provision 8A. The Board of
Directors believes that the size of the Issuer and the Board of Directors itself does not warrant the setting up of
an ad hoc committee to establish the remuneration packages of individual directors, and relies on the constant
scrutiny of the Board itself, the Issuer’s shareholders, the market, and the rules by which the Issuer is regulated
as a listed company.

The Board of Directors has not appointed a nomination committee in line with Code provision 8B as appointments
to the board are determined by the shareholders of the Issuer in accordance with the appointment process set
out in the Issuer’'s Memorandum and Articles of Association. The Issuer considers that the members of the board
possess the level of skill, knowledge and experience expected in terms of the Code.

Principle 9 (Relations with Shareholders and with the Market)

Under the present circumstances, the Board of Directors does not consider that Code provisions 9.2 - 9.4 apply
to the Issuer given the current shareholding structure.

Principle 10 (Institutional Shareholders)

This principle is not applicable since the Issuer has no institutional shareholders.

<+ 10. SHARE CAPITAL AND MAJOR
SHAREHOLDERS

10.1. Share Capital of the Issuer

The authorised share capital of the Issuer is €100,000,000 divided into 99999999 ordinary class ‘A’ shares of €1.00
each, and one ordinary class ‘B’ share of €1.00. The issued share capital of the Issuer is €80,000,001 divided into
80,000,000 ordinary class ‘A’ shares of one €1.00 each, and one ordinary class ‘B’ shares of one €1.00 and held as
follows:
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Name of Shareholder Number of Shares Class of Shares % Paid Up

IZI Group Limited™® 80,000,000 ordinary class ‘A shares 100%
Johann Schembri 1 ordinary class ‘B’ share  100%
540875M

Each ordinary class ‘A’ share confers the right to one vote at general meetings of the Issuer. Holders of ordinary
class ‘A’ shares are entitled to receive notice of, and vote at any general meeting; receive dividend distributions
as deemed fit by the Board of Directors; and participate in any asset distribution upon the dissolution or winding
up of the Issuer. Ordinary class ‘B’ shares only have the right to receive notice of general meeting and the right
to receive their paid-up nominal value on a winding up of the Issuer. Other than as aforesaid, all ordinary shares
rank pari passu in all respects. The shares of the Issuer are not listed on the Malta Stock Exchange or any other
regulated exchange, and no application for such listing has been made to date.

10.2. Major Shareholder

As at the date of this Registration Document, Mr Johann Schembri is the ultimate majority shareholder of the
Issuer by virtue of his indirect 95% controlling interest in 1ZI Group Limited held through JGS Corporate Holdings
Limited.

In line with sound governance procedures and relevant regulatory requirements, measures have been
implemented to ensure that the control exercised by Mr Schembri, as major shareholder, is not abused. These
measures include: (a) the composition of the Board, which includes a balanced mix of executive and experienced,
independent non-executive directors; and (b) the adoption of the governance rules set out in section 9.5 of this
Registration Document.

To the knowledge of the Directors, there are no arrangements for change in control of the Issuer.

<+ 1. MEMORANDUM AND ARTICLES OF
ASSOCIATION

The Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Issuer are registered with the Registrar of Companies at
the Malta Business Registry. A full list of the objects for which the Issuer is established is set out in clause 3 of the
Memorandum. These objects include, but are not limited to:

a. to act as a holding company and therefore to subscribe for, take, purchase, participate in or otherwise
acquire, hold, manage, sell or otherwise dispose of, and deal in any manner whatsoever in shares, stocks,
debentures, bonds, notes or other securities whatsoever solely for and on behalf of the Issuer, and options,
warrants or other rights or interests whatsoever in any such securities of, and any interests whatsoever in,
any company in any other part of the world as the Issuer may determine and in such manner, under such
terms and conditions and for such consideration as the Issuer may think fit;

b. to carry on the business of financing or re-financing of the funding requirements of the business of any
company forming part of the group of companies of which the Issuer forms part of and, or of any company
that is controlled, directly or indirectly, by the same person or persons as the Issuer;

c. toissue bonds, commercial paper or any other instruments creating or acknowledging indebtedness and
to sell or offer the same to the public;

d. to hold, apply for, register, purchase or by other means acquire, develop, exploit, protect and renew any
trademarks, patents, patent rights, licences, designs, royalties, copyrights, grants, options, protection and
concessions and other intellectual property, and to grant licences or rights in respect thereof; and

16 Footnote (2) in section 4.2 of this Registration Document refers.
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e. to purchase, develop, take on lease, exchange, or acquire under any other title and, or sell or dispose any
title any immovable and movable property and any rights, whether real or personal connected thereto or
emanating therefrom and any other rights privileges interests which the Issuer may consider necessary or
convenient for the purposes of the business and operations of the Issuer.

<+ 12. MATERIAL CONTRACTS

The entities forming part of the Group have not entered into any material contracts that are not in the ordinary
course of their respective business and which could result in the Issuer being under an obligation or entitlement
that is material to their ability to meet their obligations to Bondholders in terms of the Prospectus.

<+ 13.THIRD PARTY INFORMATION

Any information which has been sourced from a third party has been reviewed by the Directors, who have
taken reasonable care to ensure that such information has been accurately reproduced, and that as far as
the Directors are aware and are able to ascertain from information published by that third party, no facts have
been omitted which would render the reproduced information inaccurate or misleading. The Issuer has made
reference to information published by third parties, including but not limited to the information published by the
Malta Gaming Authority (MGA).

<+ 14. DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE FOR INSPECTION

For the duration of the Registration Document, the following documents are available for inspection at the
registered office of the Issuer:

i. the Memorandum and Articles of Association;
i. theaudited financial statements of the Issuer for the financial years ended 30 June 2023, 2024, and 2025; and

iii. the unaudited interim financial information of the Issuer for the six-month period ended 31 December 2025.

The documents so incorporated by reference are available on the following hyperlink: https:/izigroup.com/
investors/.
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